CONTRA COSTA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION
40 Muir Road, 1st Floor ® Martinez, CA 94553
e-mail: LouAnn.Texeira@lafco.cccounty.us

a (925) 313-7133

Lou Ann Texeira
Executive Officer

NOTICE AND AGENDA FOR REGUIAR MEETING

Wednesday, August 11, 2021, 1:30 PM
*+* BY TELECONFERENCE ONLY **¥*

Consistent with the California Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20 this meeting will be held by Zoom and teleconference. No
physical location will be available for this meeting.

PUBLIC ACCESS AND PUBLIC COMMENT INSTRUCTIONS

To join the meeting click: https://cccounty-us.zoom.us/j/95768795211

Or call in at the number below. As a courtesy to the other participants, please mute your device when not speaking.
USA 214-765-0478

USA 888-278-0254 (US Toll Free)
Conference code: 525510

LAFCO meetings are audio recorded and posted online at http://contracostalafco.org/meetings-and-public-hearings/. Audio
recordings are available the day following the LAFCO meeting. LAFCO meeting materials and staff reports are available online
at http://contracostalafco.org/meetings-and-public-hearings/.

PUBLIC COMMENT: The Commission will consider all verbal and written comments received. Comments may be emailed
to LouAnn. Texeira@lafco.cccounty.us or by U.S. mail to Contra Costa LAFCO at 40 Muir Road 15t Floor, Martinez, CA
94553, Please indicate the agenda item number, if any. If you want your comments read into the record, please indicate so in
the subject line. For public hearings, the Chair will announce the opening and closing of the public hearing. The Chair will call
for verbal public comments.

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC

Disclosable public records for a regular meeting agenda distributed to a majority of the members of the Commission less than
72 hours prior to that meeting will be made available on http://contracostalafco.org/meetings

Campaign Contribution Disclosure

If you are an applicant or an agent of an applicant on a matter to be heard by the Commission, and if you have made campaign
contributions totaling $250 or more to any Commissioner in the past 12 months, Government Code Section 84308 requires
that you disclose the fact, either orally or in writing, for the official record of the proceedings.

Notice of Intent to Waive Protest Proceedings

In the case of a change of organization consisting of an annexation or detachment, or a reorganization consisting solely of
annexations or detachments, or both, or the formation of a county service area, it is the intent of the Commission to waive
subsequent protest and election proceedings provided that appropriate mailed notice has been given to landowners and registered
voters within the affected territory pursuant to Gov. Code sections 56157 and 56663, and no written opposition from affected
landowner or voters to the proposal is received before the conclusion of the commission proceedings on the proposal.

American Disabilities Act Compliance
LAFCO will provide reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities planning to join the meeting. Please contact the
LAFCO office at least 48 hours before the meeting at 925-313-7133.



https://cccounty-us.zoom.us/j/95768795211
http://contracostalafco.org/meetings-and-public-hearings/
http://contracostalafco.org/meetings-and-public-hearings/
mailto:LouAnn.Texeira@lafco.cccounty.us
http://contracostalafco.org/meetings

AUGUST 11,2021 CONTRA COSTA LAFCO AGENDA

Call to Order

Roll Call

Adoption of Agenda

Approval of Minutes for the June 9, 2021 regular LAFCO meeting
Public Comment Period (please observe a three-minute time limit):

Members of the public are invited to address the Commission regarding any item that is not
scheduled for discussion as part of this Agenda. No action will be taken by the Commission at this
meeting as a result of items presented at this time.

SANEEE .

SPHERE OF INFLUENCE AMENDMENTS/CHANGES OF ORGANIZATION

6. LAFCO 21-02 — Byron Bethany Irrigation District (BBID) Annexation — Lawrence Property —
consider approving an annexation to BBID and related actions per the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA). The subject area comprises 92.8+ acres and includes four parcels (APNs 003-070-015/-
017/-019/-021) located at 2043 Camino Diablo in unincorporated Byron Public Hearing

7. LAFCO 21-03 — Beacon West & Willow Mobile Home Park - Sphere of Influence (SOI) Expansions
Contra Costa Water District (CCWD) and Diablo Water District (DWD) - consider approving SOI
expansions for CCWD (37.58+ acres) and DWD (30.1+ acres) (numerous parcels) located in
unincorporated Bethel Island; and consider related actions per CEQA Public Hearing

MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEWS (MSRs)/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE (SOI) UPDATES

8. Parks & Recreation Services MSR/SOI Updates - accept the Final Parks & Recreation MSR report with
amendments and adopt a resolution making MSR/SOI determinations and updating the SOI for the
Pleasant Hill Recreation & Park District

9. “Cemetery Districts” MSR/SOI Updates (2" Round) — consider accepting the Final MSR report, making
the required MSR and SOI determinations, updating SOls for the cemetery districts covered in the MSR
report, and taking related actions per CEQA Public Hearing

BUSINESS ITEMS

10. CALAFCO 2021 Annual Conference - Call for Board of Directors Candidates and Achievement
Award Nominations — receive the annual CALAFCO conference information, appoint voting delegate(s),
provide direction regarding Achievement Award nomination and other matters as desired

11. Legislative Update and Position Letter — receive legislative update and position letter — information only

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS
12. Pending Applications - receive an update on pending proposals — information only

13. Correspondence from Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association (CCCERA)
14. Commissioner Comments and Announcements
15. Staff Announcements/CALAFCO Updates/Newspaper Articles

ADJOURNMENT
Next regular LAFCO meeting September 8, 2021 at 1:30 pm.
LAFCO STAFF REPORTS AVAILABLE AT http://www.contracostalafco.org/meeting_archive.htm



http://www.contracostalafco.org/meeting_archive.htm

CONTRA COSTA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION
DRAFT MEETING MINUTES

June 9, 2021 August 11, 2021
Agenda Item 4

1. Welcome and Call to Order; Roll Call (Agenda Items 1&2)
Chair Skaredoff called the regular meeting of June 9, 2021, to order at 1:30 p.m.
The following Commissioners and staff were present:

Regular Commissioners Alternate Commissioners Staff

Igor Skaredoff, Chair Edi Birsan Lou Ann Texeira, Executive Officer
Rob Schroder, Vice Chair Diane Burgis Tom Geiger, Commission Counsel
Candace Andersen Stan Caldwell Sherrie Weis, LAFCO Clerk

Don Blubaugh Chuck Lewis

Tom Butt

Mike McGill

Federal Glover

Announcement: Pursuant to Governor Newsom’s Executive Order and local county health orders issued to
address the COVID 19 pandemic, the Commission meeting is being held via Zoom videoconference. The
public may listen to the meeting telephonically and comment by calling in to the teleconference meeting
per the instructions on page 1 of the agenda. As required by the Brown Act, all votes taken this afternoon

will be done by a roll call vote of the attending Commissioners participating via teleconference.

3. Adoption of Agenda

Upon motion by Commissioner Andersen and second by Commissioner McGill, the Commission

unanimously, by a 7-0 vote, adopted the agenda

VOTE:
AYES: Andersen, Blubaugh, Butt, Glover, McGill, Schroder, Skaredoff
NOES: NONE
ABSENT: NONE
ABSTAIN: NONE

4, Approval of Minutes

Upon motion by Commissioner Andersen and second by Commissioner Glover, the April 14, 2021
meeting minutes were by a 6-0 vote, approved. Commissioner Blubaugh abstained because he did

not attend the April 14, 2021 meeting.

VOTE:
AYES: Andersen, Butt, Glover, McGill, Schroder, Skaredoff
NOES: NONE
ABSENT: NONE
ABSTAIN: Blubaugh

5. Public Comments
Chair Skaredoff invited members of the audience to provide public comment.

Debra Mason, spoke of her displeasure with MSR determinations of Ambrose Recreation and Park

District and with LAFCO.



Local Agency Formation Commission of Contra Costa County
Draft Meeting Minutes of June 9, 2021 Page 2

OUT OF AGENCY SERVICE REQUESTS

6.

LAFCO 20-01- City of Concord — Out of Agency Service Request — consider a request by the
City of Concord to extend municipal wastewater services outside its jurisdictional boundary to
property located at 1974 Ayers Road (1.6+ acres) (APN 116-092-007) in unincorporated Concord
(Ayers Ranch), and consider related actions per the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)

Ms. Akins, property owner, located at 1974 Ayers Road indicated she was not opposed to
annexing to the City of Concord, and she preferers to annex when the entire Ayers Ranch is
annexed.

Following Commissioner comments and questions, and upon a motion by Commissioner
Blubaugh and a second by Commissioner Butt, the Commission, unanimously, by a 7-0 vote,
approved Option 1 to extend municipal wastewater services outside the City’s jurisdictional
boundary to the subject property, and consider related actions per CEQA

VOTE:
AYES: Andersen, Blubaugh, Butt, Glover, McGill, Schroder, Skaredoff
NOES: NONE
ABSENT: NONE
ABSTAIN: NONE

SPHERE OF INFLUENCE AMENDMENTS/CHANGES OF ORGANIZATIONS

7.

LAFCO 20-07 - Laurel Place Il — Subdivision 9389 — Annexation to City of Concord — consider
approving an annexation to the City of Concord and related actions per CEQA. The subject area
comprises 3.58+ acres and includes seven parcels (APNs 116-063-026 thru -032) and is located at
Myrtle Drive and Bailey Road in unincorporated Concord (Ayers Ranch) Public Hearing

Chair Skaredoff open and closed the public hearing, there were no public speakers.

Upon motion by Commissioner Andersen and second by Commissioner Blubaugh, the Commission,
unanimously, by a 7-0 vote, approved Option 1 annexation of the subject area to the City of Concord
and related actions CEQA..

VOTE:
AYES: Andersen, Blubaugh, Butt, Glover, McGill, Schroder, Skaredoff
NOES: NONE
ABSENT: NONE
ABSTAIN: NONE

MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEWS (MSRs)/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE (SOI) UPDATES

8.

Parks & Recreation Services MSR/SOI Updates (2" Round) — consider accepting the Final MSR
report, making the required MSR and SOI determinations, updating SOIs for the Park &
Recreation districts and county services areas covered in the MSR report, and taking related
actions under CEQA Public Hearing



Local Agency Formation Commission of Contra Costa County
Draft Meeting Minutes of June 9, 2021 Page 3

Chair Skaredoff open and closed the public hearing, there were no public speakers. LAFCO staff
noted written comments.

Following the MSR consultants’ presentation and questions and comments by Commissioners, and
upon a motion by Commissioner McGill and a second by Commissioner Blubaugh, the Commission
unanimously, by a 7-0 vote, accepted the staff and consultants’ presentation; provided comments;
adopted the MSR/SOI determinations by resolutions attached hereto; made CEQA determinations;
and appointed Commissioners Blubaugh and Lewis to a subcommittee to work with residents of
the Reliez Valley, PHRPD, and City of Lafayette on boundary and service issues.

VOTE:
AYES: Andersen, Blubaugh, Butt, Glover, McGill, Schroder, Skaredoff
NOES: NONE

ABSENT: NONE
ABSTAIN: NONE

9. Cemetery Services — MSR/SOI Updates (2"¢ Round) — receive overview of Public Review Draft
MSR and public comments and provide input. The MSR covers two cemetery districts Public
Hearing

Chair Skaredoff open and closed the public hearing, there were no public speakers.

Following the MSR consultants’ presentation and questions and comments by Commissioners, and
upon motion by Commissioner Andersen second by Commissioner Schroder, the Commission
unanimously, by a 7-0 vote, received staff report and consultants’ presentation; provided direction
and comments and to the MSR consultants and LAFCO staff; and directed LAFCO staff to set a
public hearing for August 11, 2021, at which time the Commission will be asked to accept the Final
MSR, make the required determinations, and update SOls.

VOTE:
AYES: Andersen, Blubaugh, Burgis (seated for Glover), Butt, McGill, Schroder, Skaredoff
NOES: NONE

ABSENT: NONE
ABSTAIN: NONE

BUSINESS ITEMS

10. FY 2021-22 Final Budget/Work Plan — consider approving final budget/work plan
Public Hearing

Chair Skaredoff open and closed the public hearing, there were no public speakers.

VOTE
AYES: Andersen, Blubaugh, Burgis (seated for Glover), Butt, McGill, Schroder, Skaredoff
NOES: NONE

ABSENT: NONE
ABSTAIN: NONE



Local Agency Formation Commission of Contra Costa County
Draft Meeting Minutes of June 9, 2021 Page 4

Upon motion by Commissioner McGill second by Commissioner Blubaugh, the Commission
unanimously, by a 7-0 vote, adopted the final budget/work plan and authorized staff to distribute
the FY 2021-22 Final Budget the County, cities and independent special district as required by
Government Code §56381.

11. LAFCO 18-06 — Chang Property Reorganization — Annexations to the City of San Ramon,
Central Contra Costa Sanitary District and East Bay Municipal Utility District and Detachment
from County Service Area P-6 — consider landowner’s request for extension of time to complete
the boundary reorganization

Upon a motion by Commissioner McGill and second by Commissioner Butt, the Commission
unanimously, by a 7-0 vote, approved an extension of time to file the Certificate of Completion to
July 9, 2022, as requested by the landowner in order to coordinate the timing of the open space
easement with the City of San Ramon and the resource agencies.

VOTE:
AYES: Andersen, Blubaugh, Burgis (seated for Glover), Butt, McGill, Schroder, Skaredoff
NOES: NONE

ABSENT: NONE
ABSTAIN: NONE

12. SDRMA 2021 Board Election Update — informational update — no action required by the
Commission.

CORRESPONDENCE

13. Correspondence from Contra Costa County Employee’s Retirement Association (CCCERA)

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

14. Commissioner Comments and Announcements

Commissioner Skaredoff announced Commissioner Caldwell is the recipient of the CSDA
William Hollingsworth Award. He will accept the award at the CSDA Annual Conference,
September 2, 2021 in Monterey, CA. Commissioner Caldwell was proud to report the vote was
unanimous.

Commissioner McGill updated the Commission on CALAFCO’s activities:
e Ms. Miller, Executive Director of CALAFCO has reaffirmed her retirement at end of the year.
The CALAFCO board has initiated a recruitment for her successor.

April 30, 2021 Board of Directors Meeting

May 7, 2021 Legislative Committee Meeting

May 26, 2021 CALAFCO Executive Meeting

June 18, 2021 CA Special Districts Association Legislative Days
June 23, 2021 Board of Directors Special Meeting

YVYVYYVYYV

Commissioner Caldwell gave an update on the positive progress of his health challenges.



Local Agency Formation Commission of Contra Costa County
Draft Meeting Minutes of June 9, 2021 Page 5

15. Staff Announcements

Executive Officer updates:

e Pending Projects

e Newspaper Articles

e June 7, 2021 both the county and LAFCO filed their appeals to the Los Medanos Community
Healthcare District lawsuit. SB 903 - Frasier bill related to the lawsuit passed 1% and 2"
houses unanimously. May 19, 2021 the bill was referred to the Committee on Local
Government and Finance. LAFCO will continue to monitor the bill’s progress.

e A fire reorganization study is underway that includes East County Fire, Con Fire and Rodeo -
Hercules Fire Districts. May 19, 2021, Orinda-Moraga Fire District discussed joining the
reorganization and decided not to participate.

The meeting was adjourned in memory of Sharon Anderson who served as LAFCO Legal Counsel
for over 11 years. Sharon was a brilliant attorney, a thoughtful and generous person, and a quick
wit. She will be dearly missed by family, friends, and her County and LAFCO families

The meeting adjourned at 3:11 p.m.

Final Minutes Approved by the Commission August 11, 2021

VOTE:
AYES: Andersen, Blubaugh, Butt, Glover, McGill, Schroder, Skaredoff
NOES: NONE

ABSENT: NONE
ABSTAIN: NONE

ADJOURNMENT
The next regular LAFCO meeting is July 14, 2021, at 1:30 pm.

By

Executive Officer



CONTRA COSTA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION

EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT
CUTIVE OFFICER'S REPO August 11, 2021

August 11, 2021 (Agenda) Agenda Item 6
LAFCO 21-02 Byron Bethany Irrigation District (BBID) Annexation — Lawrence Property
APPLICANT Byron Bethany Irrigation District — Resolution 2021-8 — March 16, 2021
SYNOPSIS This is an application to annex four parcels (APNs 003-070-015/017/019/021) to BBID.

The parcels total 92.8+ acres and are located at 2043 Camino Diablo in unincorporated
Byron as shown in Exhibit A (attached).

Annexation will allow the properties to receive water from BBID for agricultural,
municipal, and industrial purposes in accordance with permitted land uses.

DISCUSSION

Government Code (GC) 856668 sets forth factors that the Commission must consider in evaluating a proposed
boundary change as discussed below. In the Commission’s review, no single factor is determinative. In reaching
a decision, each factor is to be evaluated within the context of the overall proposal.

1. Consistency with the Sphere of Influence (SOI) of Any Local Agency:

BBID is a tri-County district with territory in Alameda, Contra Costa, and San Joaquin counties. San
Joaquin LAFCO is the principal LAFCO for BBID and has jurisdiction over the SOI and boundary. In
June 2019, San Joaquin LAFCO approve a Municipal Service Review (MSR) and Sphere of Influence
(SOI) update for BBID. The BBID SOI was expanded and now includes the Lawrence properties.

In coordination with the applicant and San Joaquin LAFCO, it was agreed that Contra Costa LAFCO
would process the annexation application given the subject territory is in Contra Costa County.
Subsequently, on October 14, 2020, the Contra Costa LAFCO Commissioners authorized the Executive
Officer to request that San Joaquin LAFCO transfer jurisdiction to Contra Costa LAFCO to process the
proposed annexation. On January 14, 2021, San Joaquin LAFCO approved the transfer of jurisdiction
to Contra Costa LAFCO.

2. Land Use, Planning and Zoning - Present and Future:

The County General Plan designation for the site is Agricultural Core and the County’s zoning is
Agricultural Preserve (A-4 — Parcel 40 acre minimum). The subject area is located outside the voter
approved Urban Limit Line.

The subject property is currently used for agricultural production (row crops). No changes in the current
land use are anticipated. Surrounding areas are designated as either Agricultural Core or Agricultural
Land. Land uses on surrounding properties include dry farmland, grazing land, pastureland, vineyards,
orchards, irrigated pasture, row crops, and agricultural preserve.

3. The Effect on Maintaining the Physical and Economic Integrity of Agricultural Lands and
Open Space Lands:

The project site is zoned for agricultural use and supports agricultural crop cultivation. The subject
property is within a Land Conservation (Williamson) Act agreement (Contract No. AP13-0007). The
proposed annexation will not change the current land use or designations of the subject parcels. The
applicant indicates that no anticipated loss or conversion of agricultural land will result from the
annexation.

4. Topography, Natural Features and Drainage Basins:

The subject property and most of the surrounding areas are flat, cultivated agricultural land with no
significant natural features. There is a hilly property located to the west of the Lawrence property.



10.

11.

Executive Officer’s Report
LAFCO 21-02

August 11, 2021 (Agenda)
Page 2

Population:
Annexation of the Lawrence property will not result in any development or population increase.

Fair Share of Regional Housing:
No development is proposed and there is no impact to regional housing.
Governmental Services and Controls - Need, Cost, Adequacy and Availability:

If a proposal for a change of organization or reorganization is submitted, the applicant shall also submit
a plan for providing services within the affected territory (Gov. Code §856653). The plan for services is
included with the application. The plan shall include all the following information and any additional
information required by the Commission or the Executive Officer:

(1) Anenumeration and description of the services to be extended to the affected territory.

(2) The level and range of those services.

(3) An indication of when those services can feasibly be extended to the affected territory.

(4) An indication of any improvement or upgrading of structures, roads, sewer or water facilities, or
other conditions the local agency would impose or require within the affected territory if the change
of organization or reorganization is completed.

(5) Information with respect to how those services will be financed.

The subject area is currently served by various local agencies including, but not limited to, Contra Costa
County, East Contra Costa Fire Protection District, and Byron Brentwood Union Knightsen Cemetery
District.

Timely Availability of Water and Related Issues:

BBID procures and supplies raw water to be used for irrigation and municipal purposes. In addition to
its pre-1914 water rights, BBID also has a contract with the Bureau of Reclamation for 20,600 acre-feet
(AF) for the Central Valley Service Area. Other sources of water include ground water and purchasing
water from neighboring districts. The proposed annexation will allow BBID to extend irrigation water
to the subject properties for crop production. As proposed, irrigation water will be supplied from BBID’s
Forty-Five Canal located along with westside of the Byron Highway. It is anticipated that the properties
will need 200-250-acre feet of water per growing season to support the row crops.

Assessed Value, Tax Rates, and Indebtedness:

The subject area is within tax rate area 60003. The assessed value for the subject area is $667,773 (2020-
21 roll). The territory being annexed shall be liable for all authorized or existing taxes and bonded debt
comparable to properties presently within the annexing agencies.

Environmental Impact of the Proposal:

In November 2020, the Byron Bethany Irrigation District (BBID), as Lead Agency, prepared and
approved an Initial Study/Negative Declaration (IS/ND) in conjunction with the Lawrence Property
Annexation. The Initial Study found that the proposed annexation will not have a significant effect on
the environment and that no mitigation measures are needed.

Landowner Consent and Consent by Annexing Agency:

All landowners and registered voters within the proposal area and within 300 feet of the exterior
boundaries of the area(s) were sent notice of the LAFCO hearing.

According to County Elections, there are zero registered voters in the subject area; thus, the subject area
is considered uninhabited. The affected landowner has consented to the proposed annexation.



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Executive Officer’s Report
LAFCO 21-02

August 11, 2021 (Agenda)
Page 3

Therefore, if the Commission approves the annexation, the Commission shall waive the protest hearing
(Gov. Code 856662) as no affected landowners have filed a protest.

Boundaries and Lines of Assessment:

The subject area is within BBID’s SOI. A map and legal description to implement the proposed
annexation have been received and are subject to final approval by the County Surveyor.

Environmental Justice:

LAFCO is required to consider the extent to which proposals for changes of organization or
reorganization will promote environmental justice. As defined by statute, “environmental justice”” means
the fair treatment of people of all races, cultures, and incomes with respect to the location of public
facilities and the provision of public services. The proposed annexation is not expected to promote or
discourage the fair treatment of minority or economically disadvantaged groups.

Disadvantaged Communities:

In accordance with State legislation, local agencies and LAFCOs are required to plan for disadvantaged
unincorporated communities (DUCs). Many of these communities lack basic infrastructure, including
streets, sidewalks, storm drainage, clean drinking water, and adequate sewer service. LAFCO actions
relating to Municipal Service Reviews, SOI reviews/amendments, and annexations must take into
consideration DUCs, and specifically the adequacy of public services, including sewer, water, and fire
protection needs or deficiencies, to these communities. According to the County Department of
Conservation and Development, the subject area does not meet the criteria of a DUC.

Comments from Affected Agencies/Other Interested Parties:

As of this writing, LAFCO has received no objection from any affected local agency, landowner, or
registered voter within the subject area. If no objection is received from any affected party prior to the
conclusion of the hearing on August 11", the Commission shall waive the protest hearing.

Regional Transportation and Regional Growth Plans:

In its review of a proposal, LAFCO shall consider a regional transportation plan adopted pursuant
to Gov. Code 865080 [Gov. Code 856668(g)]. Further, the Commission may consider the regional
growth goals and policies established by a collaboration of elected officials only, formally
representing their local jurisdictions in an official capacity on a regional or sub regional basis (Gov.
Code 856668.5). Regarding these sections, LAFCO looks at consistency of the proposal with the
regional transportation and other regional plans affecting the Bay Area.

SB 375, a landmark state law, requires California’s regions to adopt plans and policies to reduce the
generation of greenhouse gases (GHG), primarily from transportation. To implement SB 375, the
Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) and the Metropolitan Transportation Commission
(MTC), in July 2013, adopted Plan Bay Area as the “Regional Transportation Plan and Sustainable
Communities Strategy” for the San Francisco Bay Area through 2040. Plan Bay Area focuses on
where the region is expected to grow and how development patterns and the transportation network
can work together to reduce GHG emissions. The Plan’s key goals are to reduce GHG emissions by
specified amounts; and to plan sufficient housing for the region’s projected population over the next
25 years.

In July 2017, ABAG and MTC adopted Plan Bay Area 2040, which updates the 2013 Plan Bay Area
and reaffirms the goals/targets identified in the earlier version. Plan Bay Area establishes “Priority
Conservation Areas” (PCAs) and “Priority Development Areas” (PDAs) and focuses growth and



Executive Officer’s Report
LAFCO 21-02

August 11, 2021 (Agenda)
Page 4

development in nearly 200 PDAs. These existing neighborhoods are served by public transit and
have been identified as appropriate for additional, compact development. The subject area is not
within a PCA or a PDA, however, the proposed annexation does not appear to conflict with the
regional transportation or growth plans. The Draft Plan Bay Area 2050 was released in May 2021.
Finalization of Plan Bay Area 2050 is scheduled for Fall 2021.

ALTERNATIVES FOR COMMISSION ACTION

After consideration of this report and any testimony or additional materials that are submitted, the
Commission should consider taking one of the following actions:

Option 1 Approve the annexation as proposed.

A. Find that, as a Responsible Agency under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA),
LAFCO has reviewed and considered the environmental effects of the Lawrence Property
Annexation as shown in BBID’s Initial Study/Negative, determines that the negative declaration
is adequate, and finds that there are no direct or indirect environmental effects that would result
from LAFCO’s approval of the annexation.

B. Adopt this report, approve LAFCO Resolution No. 21-02 (Attachment 1), and approve the
proposal, to be known as Byron Bethany Irrigation District Annexation — Lawrence
Property subject to the following terms and conditions:

1. The subject territory shall be liable for the continuation of any authorized or existing special
taxes, assessments, and charges comparable to properties presently within the annexing
agency.

2. Find that the subject territory is uninhabited, and the subject landowner does not object to
the annexation; thus, the conducting authority proceedings are hereby waived.

Option 2 Adopt this report and DENY the proposal.

Option 3 If the Commission needs more information, CONTINUE this matter to a future meeting.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Option 1

LOU ANN TEXEIRA, EXECUTIVE OFFICER
CONTRA COSTA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION

Exhibit
Annexation Map — Exhibit A

Attachment

1 — Draft LAFCO Resolution 21-02

c: Rick Gilmore, General Manager, Byron Bethany Irrigation District
James Lawrence, Landowner



Attachment 1

RESOLUTION NO. 21-02
RESOLUTION OF THE CONTRA COSTA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION
MAKING DETERMINATIONS AND APPROVING THE
ANNEXATION TO BYRON BETHANY IRRIGATION DISTRICT
LAWRENCE PROPERTY

WHEREAS, the above-referenced proposal was filed with the Executive Officer of the
Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission pursuant to the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg
Local Government Reorganization Act (Section 56000 et seq. of the Government Code); and

WHEREAS, the Executive Officer examined the application and executed her certification
in accordance with law, determining and certifying that the filing is sufficient; and

WHEREAS, at the time and in the manner required by law, the Executive Officer gave
notice of the Commission’s consideration of the proposal; and

WHEREAS, the Executive Officer reviewed available information and prepared a report
including her recommendations therein, and the report and related information have been presented
to and considered by the Commission; and

WHEREAS, at a public hearing held on August 11, 2021, the Commission heard,
discussed, and considered all oral and written testimony related to the proposal including, but not
limited to, the Executive Officer's report and recommendation, the environmental document or
determination, applicable General and Specific Plans, consistency with the sphere of influence,
contiguity with the Byron Bethany Irrigation District’s boundary, and related factors and
information including those contained in Gov. Code §56668; and

WHEREAS, information satisfactory to the Commission has been presented that no
affected landowners/registered voters within the subject area object to the proposal; and

WHEREAS, the Local Agency Formation Commission determines the proposal to be in
the best interest of the affected area and the organization of local governmental agencies within
Contra Costa County; and

WHEREAS, the applicant has delivered to LAFCO an executed indemnification
agreement providing for the applicant to indemnify LAFCO against any expenses arising from any
legal actions to challenge the annexation.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission DOES
HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER as follows:

1. As a Responsible Agency under CEQA, the Commission: has reviewed and considered the
environmental effects of the proposed annexation as shown in the Lawrence Property
Annexation to Byron Bethany Irrigation District (BBID) Initial Study/Negative
Declaration approved by BBID in November 2020; determines that the negative
declaration is adequate; and finds that there are no direct or indirect environmental effects
that would result from the Commission’s approval of the annexation.

2. The annexation is hereby approved.



Resolution No. 21-02
Page 2

The subject proposal is assigned the following distinctive short-form designation:

ANNEXATION TO BYRON BETHANY IRRIGATION DISTRICT —
LAWRENCE PROPERTY

The boundary of the subject territory is found to be definite and certain as approved and
set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof.

The subject territory shall be liable for any authorized or existing taxes, charges, and
assessments comparable to properties within the annexing agency.
The subject territory is uninhabited.

The proposal has 100% landowner consent, and the conducting authority (protest)
proceedings are hereby waived.

All subsequent proceedings in connection with this annexation shall be conducted only in
compliance with the approved boundaries set forth in the attachments and any terms and
conditions specified in this resolution.

% sk ok sk ok sk ok sk ok sk ok sk ok sk ok sk ok sk ok sk ok sk %

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 11% day of August 2021, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTENTIONS:

ABSENT:

IGOR SKAREDOFF, CHAIR, CONTRA COSTA LAFCO

I hereby certify that this is a correct copy of a resolution passed and adopted by this Commission
on the date stated.

Dated:

August 11, 2021

Lou Ann Texeira, Executive Officer



LAFCO 21-02 Annexation to Byron Bethany Irrigation District (BBID) — Lawrence Property

Hoffman|L'n

| /////////

_
_

EXNIDIT A

B .AFco21-02

|:| Byron Bethany Irrigation District
C] Byron Bethany Irrigation District SOI

Parcels

L
Orwood /
Tract
Brentwood i >
Discovery
\ 1 )
\ Byron | /
—_ I Byron )
e Tract
L] N —

Camino Diablo

Map created 04/26/2021

by Contra Costa County Department of

Conservation and Development, GIS Group tax rate areas. While obligated to use this data the County assumes no responsibility for _

30 Muir Road, Martinez, CA 94553
37:59:41.791N 122:07:03.756W

This map or dataset was created by the Contra Costa County Department of Conservation
and Development with data from the Contra Costa County GIS Program. Some
base data, primarily City Limits, is derived from the CA State Board of Equalization's

its accuracy. This map contains copyrighted information and may not be altered. It may be
reproduced in its current state if the source is cited. Users of this map agree to read and O
accept the County of Contra Costa disclaimer of liability for geographic information.

Feet

1,000

2,000




CONTRA COSTA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION
EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT

August 11, 2021

AUgUSt 11, 2021 (Agenda) Agenda Item 7
LAFCO 21-03 Beacon West & Willow Mobile Home Park — Contra Costa Water District (CCWD) and
Diablo Water District (DWD) Sphere of Influence (SOI) Expansions
APPLICANT Contra Costa Water District — Resolution 20-020, December 16, 2020
ACREAGE & The applicant proposes to expand the CCWD SOl by a total of 37.58+ acres to include
LOCATION 14.27+ acres (Beacon West) and 23.31+ acres (Willow Mobile Home Park); and

expand the DWD SOl by a total of 30.1+ acres to include 6.79+ acres (Beacon West)
and 23.31+ acres (Willow Mobile Home Park).

The subject areas are located on Bethel Island in East Contra Costa County and are
within the Contra Costa County Urban Limit Line (see Exhibits A and B). The entirety
of Bethel Island is a Disadvantaged Unincorporated Community (DUC). The
applicant also submitted a corresponding proposal to annex the subject areas to
CCWD and DWD.

PURPOSE The purpose of the proposal is to allow CCWD and DWD to extend municipal water
to the Beacon West and Willow Mobile Home Park (WMHP) areas. The extension of
municipal water is also subject to review and approval by the U.S. Bureau of
Reclamation Central Valley Project.

BACKGROUND The extension of municipal water service to these areas is needed as the existing
groundwater system, aging well, and reverse osmosis system are failing as described below.

The Beacon West area, located on the northern side of the island, comprises 23 parcels, 21 of which were
annexed to DWD in 2003. There are two properties within Beacon West comprising 6.79+ acres that were
not included in the prior DWD annexation which are included in the current proposed SOI expansion and
annexation. The applicant also proposes to add the Beacon West area (14.27+ acres) to CCWD’s SOI and
service boundary. The groundwater system that previously served Beacon West exceeded the primary
drinking water standard for arsenic and was abandoned in 2019.

The WMHP area, also located on the northern side of the island, includes 172 mobile homes (23.31+
acres). Contra Costa County manages the WMHP ground water system through County Service Area
(CSA) M-28. The mobile homes are connected to an aging well and reverse osmosis system that fails to
meet secondary drinking water standards for manganese and specific conductance. The mobile home park
also has a fire flow deficiency as there is insufficient water storage at the site. DWD is evaluating State
Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) grant funding to fund design and construction of the water line
extension. Mark Brading with The Willows at Bethel Island submitted a letter expressing concerns with
the existing water source and supporting extension of municipal water service to WMHP (Attachment 1).

DISCUSSION The Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act (CKH Act) empowers LAFCO with the
responsibility for developing and determining the SOI of each local agency within the County, and for enacting
policies designed to promote the logical and orderly development of areas within the SOls.

An SOI is defined as a plan for the probable physical boundary and service area of a local agency, as
determined by LAFCO. The intent of an SOI is to identify the most appropriate area for an agency’s extension
of services in the foreseeable future (e.g., 10-20 year horizon). Accordingly, territory included in an agency’s



Beacon West & Willow Mobile Home Park - CCWD and DWD SOI Expansions — Staff Report
LAFCO 21-02

August 11, 2021 (Agenda)

Page 2

SOl is an indication that the probable need for service has been established, and that the subject agency has
been determined by LAFCO to be the most logical service provider for the area.

Pursuant to Government Code section 56425, when amending an SOI for a local agency, LAFCO is required
to consider and prepare a written statement of determinations with respect to the following:

1. The present and planned uses in the area, including agricultural and open space lands — The land uses
on the subject areas include 23 single family homes and 172 mobile homes. General Plan and Zoning
designations are as follows:

+ Beacon West Area - County General Plan (GP) designations in this area include Single Family
Residential — High (SH); SH with a Flood Hazard (FH) Combining District overlay; one parcel is
designated Agricultural (AL); and a portion adjacent to Bethel Island Road is designated Open Space
(OS). Zoning designations include SH, FH, General Agriculture (A-2), and Solar Energy Generation
Combining District (SG).

+ WMHP - County GP designation is Mobile Home (MO). County Zoning designations include Mobile
Home/Manufactured Home Park (T-1) and FH.

The proposed SOI expansions and pending annexations will not facilitate new development or changes in
land use and will have no impact on agricultural land.

2. The present and probable need for public facilities and services in the area — The existing residential land
uses require public services, including municipal water. The existing ground water, well, and reverse
osmosis systems are failing and do not meet water quality standards. Municipal water service through
CCWD and DWD is needed.

3. The present capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services that the agency provides or is
authorized to provide — Regarding wholesale water, CCWD’s boundary encompasses 220+ square miles
in central and eastern Contra Costa County. CCWD’s untreated water service area includes Antioch,
Bay Point, Oakley, Pittsburg, and portions of Brentwood and Martinez. The District’s treated water
service area includes Clayton, Clyde, Concord, Pacheco, Port Costa, and parts of Martinez, Pleasant
Hill, and Walnut Creek. CCWD also treats and delivers water to the City of Brentwood, Golden State
Water Company (Bay Point), Diablo Water District (Oakley), and the City of Antioch. CCWD provides
treated water service to approximately 250,000 residents and untreated water service that supports
approximately 250,000 residents for a total population of approximately 500,000 (61,858 treated and
346 untreated water connections). The primary sources of water are the United States Bureau of
Reclamation (USBR) Central Valley Project (CVP) and delta diversions. One of CCWD’s prerequisites
for service, including future annexation, is inclusion in the CVVP service area. The CVP inclusion review
is a separate process and requires specific environmental documents. Subsequent to LAFCO’s approval
of the SOI amendments and annexations, CCWD will proceed with the CVP inclusion review. CCWD
is using “Proposition 1 Disadvantaged Community Involvement Grant Funding”, which is managed by
the Department of Water Resources, in conjunction with this proposal.

Regarding retail water, DWD encompasses 21+ square miles including Oakley, downtown Knightsen,
parts of Bethel Island including Delta Coves, and unincorporated areas including the Hotchkiss Tract,
East Cypress Corridor Specific Plan Area, and the Summer Lakes development. DWD collects, treats
and supplies municipal water to over 42,000 residents. The District’s primary sources of water include
CVP (purchased from CCWD) and groundwater extracted from the East Contra Costa Subbasin.

DWD is the local water service provider that will permanently serve these two areas following
annexation and inclusion. In 2019, DWD completed a 6-inch emergency water line extension to serve
Beacon West. Each of the Beacon West parcels have a water meter. The WMHP parcels will have a



Beacon West & Willow Mobile Home Park - CCWD and DWD SOI Expansions — Staff Report
LAFCO 21-02

August 11, 2021 (Agenda)

Page 3

single water meter once the new treated line is designed and constructed to serve the 172 mobile
homes.

Based on their recent future water supply studies and urban water management plans, both CCWD
and DWD indicate they have the capacity to serve the project. The districts and landowners will work
together to complete the CVP inclusion process.

4. The existence of any social or economic communities of interest in the area if the commission
determines that they are relevant to the agency — The subject areas are located in unincorporated
Bethel Island. Both CCWD and DWD have a presence in the area as both districts provide water
service to neighboring developments in Bethel Island and in the City of Oakley. As noted above, the
entirety of Bethel Island is a DUC. In accordance with LAFCO law, in updating or amending a SOI,
LAFCO must consider needs or deficiencies related to sewer, municipal and industrial water, and
structural fire protection in any DUC within or contiguous to the subject agency’s SOI.

5. Nature, location, extent, functions & classes of services to be provided — CCWD provides treated water
service to Clayton, Clyde, Concord, Pacheco, Port Costa, and parts of Martinez, Pleasant Hill, and
Walnut Creek. CCWD also treats and delivers water to the City of Brentwood, Golden State Water
Company (Bay Point), Diablo Water District (Oakley), and the City of Antioch. CCWD serves
approximately 500,000 residents (61,858 treated and 346 untreated water connections) in Central and
East Contra Costa County. The primary sources of water are the USBR CVP and delta diversions.
CCWD is expected to provide wholesale water to the subject area.

DWD provides retail water to the City of Oakley, downtown Knightsen, parts of Bethel Island
including Delta Coves, and unincorporated areas including the Hotchkiss Tract, East Cypress Corridor
Specific Plan Area, and the Summer Lakes development. DWD collects, treats and supplies municipal
water to over 42,000 residents. The District’s primary sources of water include CVP (purchased from
CCWD) and groundwater extracted from the East Contra Costa Subbasin. DWD is expected to provide
retail water to the subject area.

Environmental Impact of the Proposal — CCWD, as Lead Agency, found the project exempt pursuant to
CEQA Guidelines sections 15303 — New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures and section 15319
Annexations of Existing Facilities and Lots for Exempt Facilities.

ALTERNATIVES FOR COMMISSION ACTION

After consideration of this report and any testimony or additional materials that are submitted, the Commission
should consider taking one of the following actions:

Option 1 Adopt the resolution (Attachment 2) approving the proposed CCWD and DWD SOI
expansions to CCWD’s SOI by a total of 37.58+ acres to include 14.27+ acres (Beacon West)
and 23.31+ acres (Willow Mobile Home Park), and to DWD’s SOI by a total of 30.1+ acres to
include 6.79+ acres (Beacon West) and 23.31+ acres (Willow Mobile Home Park).

A. Determine that CCWD, as Lead Agency, found the project exempt pursuant to CEQA
Guidelines sections 15303 — New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures and
section 15319 Annexations of Existing Facilities and Lots for Exempt Facilities

B. Adopt this report and expand the SOIs of CCWD and DWD as described herein and
shown on the attached map.

Option 2 Adopt this report and DENY the proposal.



Beacon West & Willow Mobile Home Park - CCWD and DWD SOI Expansions — Staff Report

LAFCO 21-02
August 11, 2021 (Agenda)
Page 4
Option 3 If the Commission needs more information, CONTINUE this matter to a future meeting.

RECOMMENDATION Option 1 —approve the SOI expansions as proposed.

LOU ANN TEXEIRA, EXECUTIVE OFFICER
CONTRA COSTA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION

Exhibit
Exhibit A - Map — Proposed CCWD SOI Expansion
Exhibit B - Map — Proposed DWD SOI Expansion

Attachment
Attachment 1 - Letter from Mark Brading — The Willows at Bethel Island
Attachment 2 - Draft LAFCO Resolution — CCWD and DWD SOI Expansions

(0% Mark A. Seedall, Principal Planner, Contra Costa Water District
Dan Muelrath, General Manager, Diablo Water District
Carl Roner, Contra Costa County Public Works



Attachment 1

THe WiLLows AT BETHEL IsLAND
3656 Willow Road

Address

The P. 0. Box 428 - Bethel Isand, CA 94511

wlbwws (925) 684-3536

AT BETHEL ISLAND

RECEIVED June 21, 2021

Lisa M. Borba, President JUN 2 4 2021
Board of Directors CCWD
Contra Costa Water District BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1331 Concord Avenue
Concord, CA 94520

RE: Letter of Support for Expansion of Contra Costa Water District / Diablo Water District
(CCWD/DWD) to The Willows at Bethel Island mobilehome park.

Dear President Borba:

[ am writing to express the support of The Willows at Bethel Island (Park) for the expansion of the
CCWD/DWD water service to our Park. The extension of water service to the Park will provide our
homeowners with a reliable source of quality water while also improving the reliability and
capability of our fire hydrants.

Over the years the County has done their best to maintain a reverse osmosis water filtration system
for our Park residents. However, due to the cost of maintenance, the cost of replacement
components, and the constant monitoring requirements, this filtration system became too expensive
to operate and as a result our Park residents are receiving unfiltered well water for their domestic
water supply.

Since the 172 mobilehomes in our Park are reliant on a single well source for domestic water, this is
a constant concern for our homeowners. What happens if the well becomes contaminated? What
happens if the well dries up or is not capable of supplying sufficient water? When the power is out,
so is the water supply for our homeowners. Even though our Park has fire hydrants located
throughout, these hydrants are dependent on electricity to the well pump and are also limited by the
capacity of the storage tank.

The CCWD/DWD domestic water supply extension to The Willows at Bethel Island will provide our
homeowners with a reliable, quality, sustainable, and affordable water source while also improving
the fire suppression capabilities within the Park. For all of these reasons, The Willows at Bethel
[sland is in favor of expanding the CCWD/DWD water service to our Park.

Sincerely,

Mark Brading_
The Willows at Bethel Island

cc: File



Attachment 2
SPHERE OF INFLUENCE RESOLUTION NO. 21-03

RESOLUTION OF THE CONTRA COSTA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION
MAKING DETERMINATIONS AND EXPANDING THE SPHERES OF INFLUENCE
OF CONTRA COSTA WATER DISTRICT AND DIABLO WATER DISTRICT
(BEACON WEST AND WILLOW MOBILE HOME PARK)

WHEREAS, a proposal to expand the spheres of influence (SOIls) of Contra Costa Water District
(CCWD) and Diablo Water District (DWD) was filed with the Contra Costa Local Agency Formation
Commission (LAFCO) pursuant to the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of
2000 (Government Code §56425); and

WHEREAS, at the time and in the manner required by law the Executive Officer has given notice of
the Commission’s consideration of the proposal; and

WHEREAS, the Commission heard, discussed and considered all oral and written testimony related
to the proposal including, but not limited to, the Executive Officer's report and recommendation, the
environmental document or determination, SOIs and applicable General and Specific Plans and all testimony,
correspondence and exhibits received during the public hearing, all of which are included herein by reference;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Contra Costa LAFCO DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND
ORDER as follows:

1. The matter before the Commission is the proposed expansion of Contra Costa Water District’s
(CCWD) SOl by a total of 37.58+ acres, and a proposed expansion of Diablo Water District’'s (DWD)
SOl by a total of 30.1+ acres, to extend municipal water to Beacon West and Willow Mobile Home
Park, located in unincorporated Bethel Island.

2. The Commission is a Responsible Agency under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA);
and in accordance with CEQA, finds the project is exempt pursuant to CEQA Guidelines, Sections
15303 and 15319, consistent with the determination of CCWD acting as Lead Agency.

3. The Commission has considered the criteria set forth in Government Code §56425 and determines
as follows:

The present and planned uses in the area, including agricultural and open space lands — The
County General Plan designations for the Beacon West area include Single Family Residential — High
(SH); SH with a Flood Hazard (FH) Combining District overlay; one parcel is designated Agricultural
(AL); and a portion adjacent to Bethel Island Road is designated Open Space (OS); Zoning
designations for this area include SH, FH, General Agriculture (A-2), and Solar Energy Generation
Combining District (SG).

The County General Plan designation for the Willow Mobile Home Park (WMHP) area is Mobile Home
(MO); and County Zoning designations for this area include Mobile Home/Manufactured Home Park
(T-1) and FH.

The proposed SOl expansions and pending annexations will not facilitate new development or
changes in land use and will have no impact on agricultural land.

The present and probable need for public facilities and services in the area — The existing
residential land uses require public services, including municipal water. The existing ground water, well,
and reverse osmosis systems are failing and do not meet water quality standards. Municipal water
service through CCWD and DWD is needed.

The present capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services that the agency
provides or is authorized to provide — DWD is the local water service provider that will serve these
two areas following annexation and inclusion. In 2019, DWD completed a 6-inch water line extension
to serve Beacon West. Each of the Beacon West parcels will be required to have a water meter. The
WMHP parcels will have a single water meter once the new treated line is designed and constructed
to serve the 172 mobile homes. CCWD will serve as the wholesale water provider. Based on their
recent future water supply studies and urban water management plans, both CCWD and DWD indicate



Resolution 21-03
Page 2

they have the capacity to serve the project. Following SOl and annexation approval by LAFCO, CCWD
will work with the United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) to complete the Central Valley Project
(CVP) inclusion review.

The existence of any social or economic communities of interest in the area if the commission
determines that they are relevant to the agency - The subject areas are located in unincorporated
Bethel Island. Both CCWD and DWD have a presence in the area as both districts provide water
service to neighboring developments in Bethel island and in the City of Oakley. The entirety of Bethel
Island is a Disadvantaged Unincorporated Community (DUC). In accordance with LAFCO law, in
updating or amending a SOI, LAFCO must consider needs or deficiencies related to sewer, municipal
and industrial water, and structural fire protection in any DUC within or contiguous to the subject
agency’s SOI.

Nature, location, extent, functions & classes of services to be provided — CCWD provides treated
water service to Clayton, Clyde, Concord, Pacheco, Port Costa, and parts of Martinez, Pleasant Hill,
and Walnut Creek. CCWD also treats and delivers water to the City of Brentwood, Golden State Water
Company (Bay Point), DWD (Oakley), and the City of Antioch. CCWD serves approximately 500,000
residents (61,858 treated and 346 untreated water connections) in Central and East Contra Costa
County. The primary sources of water are the USBR CVP and delta diversions. CCWD is expected to
provide wholesale water to the subject area.

DWD provides retail water to the City of Oakley, downtown Knightsen, parts of Bethel Island including
Delta Coves, and unincorporated areas including the Hotchkiss Tract, East Cypress Corridor Specific
Plan Area, and the Summer Lakes development. DWD collects, treats and supplies municipal water
to over 40,000 residents. The District’s primary sources of water include CVP (purchased from CCWD)
and groundwater extracted from the East Contra Costa Subbasin. DWD is expected to provide retail
water to the subject area.

The SOls of CCWD and DWD are hereby expanded to include the areas as shown on the attached
maps (Exhibits A and B).

CCWD and DWD services are limited to serving the subject properties (Beacon West and Willow
Mobile Park).

*k k k k ok k kkkkkkkkkkhkkkhkkk ok Kk

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 11" day of August 2021, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:

ABSTENTIONS:
ABSENT:

IGOR SKAREDOFF, CHAIR, CONTRA COSTA LAFCO

| hereby certify that this is a correct copy of a resolution passed and adopted by this Commission on the date
stated above

Dated: August 11, 2021

Lou Ann Texeira, Executive Officer



LAFCO No. 21-03: Contra Costa Water District SOl Amendment-Beacon West & Willow Mobile Home Park
Exhibit A
Litte Franks B L~Fco 2103
bi | ccwp
] ccwb sol

@ County Urban Limit Line

Franks
Tract

%
QO
2 N
& N
=]
oy
K
L)
@
ey
=
[}
[a1]
& Webb
.o Bradford
Tract
f} Island
S
S
@9’ 7
!
~ Franks @
IS ) 7 Tract %
& | é‘»;)
ersey
Island e Bethel K
Quimby
- Island island Island
-
Brea g
Holland o
Tract -
Oakley o =S W,)/
(@) o (o
v
5 %y
2 (=3
a A\
This map or dataset was created by the Contra Costa County Department of Conservation N
Map created 05/14/2021 and Development with data from the Contra Costa County GIS Program. Some
by Contra Costa County Department of base data, primarily City Limits, is derived from the CA State Board of Equalization's Feet
W E

Conservation and Development, GIS Group tax rate areas. While obligated to use this data the County assumes no responsibility for
30 Muir Road, Martinez, CA 94553 its accuracy. This map contains copyrighted information and may not be altered. It may be |
37:59:41.791N 122:07:03.756W reproduced in its current state if the source is cited. Users of this map agree to read and
accept the County of Contra Costa disclail of liability for ic i i O 1,000 2,000 4,000




LAFCO No. 21-03: Diablo Water District SOl Amendment-Beacon West & Willow Mobile Home Park

Exhibit B
Little Franks B LAFco 2103
Tract
) DWD
- /) DWD SOl
@ County Urban Limit Line
Franks
Tract
9§
kel 00&
4 N
S ¢
c
K
L%
]
o
©
o
& Webb
.o Bradford Tract
éZ‘ Island
S
o %
ﬁo(y Franks ‘@A
S 7 Tract //oé
K Jersey Py
Island Bethel : Bethel 2%
- Island ?;g?lzy Island
Breal $
Holland -02:
Oakley Tract 5 s S'W/;/
o o ()
oL 2
2 sl
Q.
£ X

This map or dataset was created by the Contra Costa County Department of Conservation
Map created 07/16/2021 and Development with data from the Contra Costa County GIS Program. Some
Feet

by Contra Costa County Department of base data, primarily City Limits, is derived from the CA State Board of Equalization's
Conservation and Development, GIS Group tax rate areas. While obligated to use this data the County assumes no responsibility for W
its accuracy. This map contains copyrighted information and may not be altered. It may be |
4,000

30 Muir Road, Martinez, CA 94553
37:59:41.791N 122:07:03.756W reproduced in its current state if the source is cited. Users of this map agree to read and
accept the County of Contra Costa disclaimer of liability for geographic information. O 1 ,OOO 2 ,OOO



CONTRA COSTA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION
40 Muir Road, 1st Floor ® Martinez, CA 94553

e-mail: LouAnn.Texeira@lafco.cccounty.us

(925) 313-7133

MEMBERS ALTERNATE MEMBERS
Candace Andersen Federal Glover Diane Burgis
County Member County Member County Member
Lou Ann Texeira Donald A. Blubaugh Michael R. McGill Stanley Caldwell
) . Public Member Special District Member Special District Member
Executive Officer
Tom Butt Rob Schroder Charles R. Lewis, 1V
City Member City Member Public Member
Igor Skaredoff Edi Birsan
Special District Member City Member

August 11, 2021 (Agenda)

August 11, 2021
Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) Agenda Item 8

40 Muir Road, 1% Floor
Martinez, CA 94553

2"d Round “Parks & Recreation Services” Municipal Services Review
Pleasant Hill Recreation & Park District Sphere of Influence Update

Dear Members of the Commission:

INTRODUCTION

In December 2019, Contra Costa LAFCO initiated its 2@ Round “Parks & Recreation Services” Municipal
Services Review (MSR) and Sphere of Influence (SOI) updates. This MSR was delayed due to the COVID
pandemic. The 1% Round Parks & Recreation MSR/SOI updates was completed in 2010.

Following public hearings on April 14, 2021 and June 9, 2021, the Commission adopted MSR and SOI
determinations and updated the SOlIs for the eight County Service Areas and two of the three parks & recreation
districts covered in the MSR. The Commission deferred accepting the Final Parks & Recreation MSR pending
amendments related to city parks and levels of service. A parks table was added to the MSR in response to
Commissioner comments. Also, LAFCO formed a subcommittee to meet with representatives of the Pleasant
Hill Recreation & Park District’s (PHRPD), City of Lafayette, and Reliez Valley residents to further discuss
service boundary issues.

On August 11, 2021, the Commission will be asked to accept the Final 2" Round “Parks & Recreation Services
Municipal Services Review, adopt MSR and SOI determinations for PHRPD, and update the SOI for the PHRPD.
The Final 2" Round “Parks & Recreation Services Municipal Services Review ” is available on the Contra Costa
LAFCO website at https://www.contracostalafco.org/agencies/municipal-service-reviews/.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION — PLEASANT HILL RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT (PHRPD)
PHRPD was formed in 1951 and serves the City of Pleasant Hill and unincorporated areas of Lafayette, Walnut
Creek, Walden/Contra Costa Centre, and the Reliez Valley, with a population of 41,600. Note: Reliez Valley is
a census designated place (unincorporated) located east/northeast of Lafayette and west/southwest of Pleasant
Hill. Portions of the Reliez Valley are within the SOls and boundaries of the cities of Pleasant Hill and Lafayette.
There is a disadvantaged community located within the service boundary of PHRPD (i.e., southern portion of
Pleasant Hill and adjacent to Walnut Creek).


https://www.contracostalafco.org/agencies/municipal-service-reviews/

PHPRD MSR/SOI Update
August 11, 2021 (Agenda)
Page 2

PHRPD manages 260+ acres of active and passive parkland and open space along with several community
facilities. The majority of the District’s parks and facilities are in “very good* condition, with two parks and one
facility rated as “poor”. PHRPD offers robust programming in the following areas: preschool, youth, teen, adult
classes, senior, sports, and special events. The District’s website and seasonal publications of recreational
programs and community events inform residents of the myriad of opportunities. PHRPD shares facilities with
the Mt. Diablo Unified School District (i.e., softball fields at the middle and high schools, maintenance yard).

District revenues come primarily from taxes, assessments and charges for services, with a modest amount from
grants and money/reserves/property. COVID has severely affected PHRPD’s ability to offer recreational
programming in the traditional sense. As nearly 50% of the District’s operating revenues are from charges for
service, this creates a financial vulnerability going forward. Also, the District’s parcel tax of $47 per parcel does
not include a cost inflator; thus, the value of the annual parcel tax erodes over time.

Since the 2010 Parks & Recreation Services MSR was prepared, the passage of Measure E, a $28 million general
obligation bond, resulted in improvements throughout the PHRPD’s service area, including new senior, teen and
community centers, and upgrades to Pleasant Oaks Park.

The District’s 5-year Capital Improvement Program Plan provides for nearly $1.5 million in capital
improvements, with the most extensive improvements planned for Pleasant Hill Park and the Rodgers Smith
Park. The City of Pleasant Hill passes all parkland in-lieu fee revenue for new development to PHRPD for
parkland acquisition and park improvements. However, a recent $63.5 million bond measure (Measure A) did
not pass in March 2020 and may affect the District’s ability to fully implement its recent Master Plan.

PHRPD was engaged in the recent MSR and responsive to LAFCO staff and the MSR consultants. The District
demonstrated accountability and transparency.

LAFCO Subcommittee - At the April 14, 2021 public hearing, LAFCO received a letter from Reliez Valley
residents requesting removal from PHRPD’s service boundary given they more closely align with Lafayette
(incorporated and unincorporated). Further, that the one PHRPD park located in their vicinity is in need of
improvements. It should be noted that while LAFCO can modify a local agency’s SOI, LAFCO cannot initiate
annexation or detachment. Such boundary change requests must be submitted to LAFCO by application from
either an affected local agency(ies), affected landowner(s), and/or affected registered voter(s).

In response to the residents’ request, on June 9, 2020, the Commission appointed Commissioners Blubaugh and
Lewis to a subcommittee to work with the local agencies (PHRPD, City of Lafayette) and interested Reliez
Valley residents on boundary and service issues.

Local Agency/Public Input

On July 28" LAFCO subcommittee members Blubaugh and Lewis and the LAFCO Executive Officer met at
Brookwood Park with City of Lafayette Council Member Candell, City Manager and City Park & Recreation
Director, and PHPRD Board Member Glover and the District General Manager. The group discussed the
residents’ concerns, Reliez Valley residents’ participation in City of Lafayette and PHRPD programs/activities,
property tax/special assessments, status of the City’s General Plan update, potential annexation of the subject
area to City of Lafayette, potential detachment of the subject area from PHRPD, and related matters.
Subsequently, LAFCO staff contacted the Reliez Valley representative and requested a meeting with interested
residents. The representative provided a copy of their 2019 letter (Attachment 1) and indicated given PHRPD
has no interest in removing their area from the District’s boundary, there is no need to meet.

In sum, both the City of Lafayette and PHRPD indicate that, to some extent, Reliez Valley residents participate
in City and District park & recreation programs/activities. The PHRPD does not support detachment of the



PHPRD MSR/SOI Update
August 11, 2021 (Agenda)
Page 3

subject area from the District’s service boundary. Further, any detachment of this area from PHRPD would
create issues regarding Brookwood Park which is owned and maintained by PHRPD.

The City of Lafayette General Plan (GP) update is underway and expected to be complete in 4-5 years. The GP
update will review SOI expansion and annexation of this area. City staff indicates that costs associated with SOI
updates and annexations are typically borne by the interested parties/applicants. Further, that costs associated
with boundary expansions and extending city services to new areas could entail additional costs/ assessments.

In response to both the 2021 “Parks & Recreation Services” MSR and the 2019 “City Services” MSR, a group
of 40 Reliez Valley residents raised concerns regarding the City of Lafayette, City of Pleasant Hill, and PHRPD
SOls and service boundaries. As indicated in their 2019 letter, these residents are within the Lafayette school
district, are served by the Lafayette Parks & Recreation Department and Lafayette Moraga Youth Association,
and affiliate with Lafayette. Further, they indicate they pay sizeable taxes to PHRPD for services/facilities that
are lightly, if ever used. The residents requested that their area be removed from the City of Pleasant Hill’s SOI
and placed in the City of Lafayette’s SOI, and also be removed from the PHRPD SOI. In 2019, in conjunction
with the “City Services” MSR, LAFCO made no changes to the Lafayette and Pleasant Hill SOIs and reaffirmed
the existing SOIs for these cities.

SOI Options and Recommendations

In conjunction with the 2010 Parks & Recreation Services MSR, LAFCO expanded the District’s SOI to include
all areas within the City of Pleasant Hill’s SOI, and reduced the SOI to remove cities of Lafayette and Walnut
Creek areas with the exception of Lafayette immediately adjacent to Brookwood Park. The rationale was that
PHRPD primarily provides recreation and park services to the City of Pleasant Hill and therefore, a more logical
boundary for PHRPD would be an SOI that coincides with the City of Pleasant Hill’s boundary. Further, there
is service duplication in certain parts of the PHRPD where the cities of Lafayette and Walnut Creek also provide
recreation and park services.

In conjunction with the 2021 Parks & Recreation Services MSR, both the MSR consultants and LAFCO staff
recommend retaining the existing SOI for PHRPD.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS
The MSR and related SOI updates are statutorily exempt under CEQA Guidelines 815262 and categorically
exempt under CEQA Guidelines §15061(b)(3), respectively.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. Receive staff report and public comments; provide comments as desired.

2. Determine that the MSR project is exempt pursuant to 815262 of the CEQA Guidelines, and that the SOI
updates are categorically exempt pursuant to §15061(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines.

3. Accept the Final 2" Round “Parks & Recreation Services Municipal Services Review; and adopt the
MSR/SOI determinations for PHRPD by resolutions attached hereto (Attachment 2)

Sincerely,

LOU ANN TEXEIRA
EXECUTIVE OFFICER
C: Distribution

Attachment 1 - 2019 Letter from Reliez Valley Residents
Attachment 2 — MSR and SOI Resolution — PHRPD
Exhibit A — Map — PHRPD



Attachment 1
March 29, 2019

Contra Costa Local Agency Formation
Commission
651 Pine St, 6th Floor

Attn: Ms. Lou Ann Texeira
Dr. Commission Members and Staff

On behalf of the Lafayette residents of Reliez Valley, we kindly request a review of
the district boundaries of the Pleasant Hill Parks and Recreation District a(“the
District or PHPRD”) and ultimately the removal of all Lafayette residents (city and
county) from the District.

As you know, the District was established in 1951, before incorporation of the cities
of Pleasant Hill and Lafayette. Since then, much has changed. Very importantly,
with the incorporation of Lafayette, and the change in school district for Reliez
Valley residents from the Pleasant Hill to Lafayette schools (~30 years ago), the
Lafayette Reliez Valley residents find themselves in a predicament...paying huge
sums to the Pleasant Hill Parks and Recreation District for services and facilities
they barely, if ever, use. This was significantly exacerbated by the passage of
Measure E in 2009, which will cause many of Lafayette’s residents to pay in excess
of $10,000 over the 30-year term of the Measure E bond, the proceeds of which
were largely used to build Pleasant Hill’s Senior Center, Pleasant Hill's Teen Center,
the Pleasant Hill community center, significantly upgrade Pleasant Hill's Pleasant
Oaks Park, and upgrade bathroom facilities at various parks primarily serving
Pleasant Hill citizens. These facilities are lightly, if ever, used by Lafayette residents.

PHPRD is awesome, and we admire the District and its leaders, but we are served by
the Lafayette Parks and Recreation Department and Lafayette Moraga Youth
Association and have been for many years. It is simply unfair for our constituents to
pay such large sums to PHPRD. We estimate that our Lafayette neighbors pay
between $50,000 and $100,000 annually for the facilities that we do not use. And
since we only represent a small fraction of the constituents of the district (~300 of
16,000 households, <2%), we are totally disenfranchised and kindly need help to
separate from the District. It is our view, supported by activities and investments in
the District, that the District’s focus is squarely on central and eastern Pleasant Hill,
as the use of the Measure E proceeds proves, and as further evidenced by the
District’s recent agreement to purchase a $3 million, 5-acre parcel on Oak Park
Boulevard, adjacent to Pleasant Hill Middle School, for future park development.

Separately, our residents are submitting to have the sphere of influence for our area
reviewed and changed from Pleasant Hill to Lafayette. We support this effort



wholeheartedly, and also believe this is a change that should have been made many
years ago, probably when the school district in this area was changed.

We understand that there is a financial downside to removing our constituents from
the District. That said, there may be no better time than now to separate., and
keeping us in the district just because provide money, but do not use the facilities, is
fundamentally unfair. We note that the District has operated at a significant surplus
for 5 years in a row, ending the most recent year with a $400,000 surplus and an
unheard of A+ credit rating from Standard Poor’s.

We read the report by Burr Consulting from the last time a district review was
undertaken. We noted that the consultant called out “In areas where PHRPD
boundaries overlap city boundaries there would appear to be a duplication of
services, as both PHRPD and the cities of Lafayette and Walnut Creek provide park
and recreation services” and that different boundary options were considered,
including the exclusion of Lafayette residents from the district. Based on the report,
it appears that the primary reason for not separating Lafayette from the district is
the adjacency of Brookwood Park to Lafayette. More than once, the report indicates
that “residents in this area visit the park frequently due to the proximity”. While the
adjacency is undeniable, very few residents use the park. It is aging, with no
investment made in over 15 years (with exception of the installation of 2 port-a-
potties from Brookwood Park’s portion of the Measure E funds), and, most
importantly, itis poorly located. The park is at the corner of two very busy streets,
Taylor Blvd and Withers Avenue. There are very few sidewalks in proximity to the
park, so getting to the park is treacherous. From our observations over the past
several years, the park is scantily utilized except for occasional dog walkers from the
immediate (< 50 home) neighborhood. There are many options here, but none of
them should fairly ask the citizens of Lafayette to pay $50,000 -$100,000 per year
so a small number of dog walkers can use Brookwood Park. If separated, we would
hope to work with the District to find a more equitable funding solution for ongoing
maintenance at Brookwood Park.

Again, on behalf of the Lafayette city and county residents of Reliez Valley, we kindly
and respectfully ask for separation from the Pleasant Hill Parks and Recreation
District. We are simply not connected to the District in vision, strategy, recreational
facilities and services and do not share the view that District should be
concentrically focused on Pleasant Hill with us as a part of the District. While it
might have made sense for our neighborhood to belong to the district in the past,
that is simply not the case any longer, and has become, financially, heavily
burdensome and fundamentally unfair.

Thank you for you consideration.

Respectfully, Lafayette City & County Residents and District Members,



Electronically signed by:

Shira Abel

Roger Chelemedos
Franca Del Ponte
Rachel Dreyer
Brian Dunton
Chris Evans

John Hemmenway
Leonora Holmes
Hayes Hollar

Rick Keely

Raj Krishna
Lynda Lurie

Jack McCarthy
Matt Nelson
Stephanie O’'Toole
April Raffel
Ashley Stevens
Pete Stevens
Deborah Warren

Jocelyn Werner

Tom Barber

Yumi Chelemedos
Dave Dorian

Tom Dreyer
Shawna Dunton
Lindy Evans
Kathy Hemmenway
Neil Holmes

Heidi Keely
Rosemary Kirbach
Rupy Krishna
Cathy McCarthy
Maria Nelson

Dan O’'Toole

Erin Park

Robert Raffel
Mike Stevens
Penny Stevens
Fred Warren

Peter Werner



Attachment 2

RESOLUTION OF THE CONTRA COSTA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION
COMMISSION ADOPTING MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW AND
SPHERE OF INFLUENCE DETERMINATIONS FOR THE
PLEASANT HILL RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT

WHEREAS, the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Governmental Reorganization Act of 2000 (California
Government Code §56000 et seq.) provides that a Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) shall adopt a
Sphere of Influence (SOI) for each local governmental agency within its jurisdiction [§56425(a)] and that it must
update each SOI every five years, as necessary (§56425(g)); and

WHEREAS, the SOI is the primary planning tool for LAFCO and defines the probable physical boundary
and service area of a local agency as determined by LAFCO; and

WHEREAS, §56430 requires that in order to update SOIs, the Commission shall conduct a Municipal
Service Review (MSR) prior to or in conjunction with the SOI update; and

WHEREAS, the Commission has undertaken its 2™ round “Parks & Recreation Services” MSR covering all
19 cities, four community services districts (CSDs), three recreation & park districts, one regional park district, and
eight county service areas; and

WHEREAS, this MSR, as prepared by Economic & Planning Systems, Inc and Berkson Associates, focuses
on: 1) updating profile data including growth and population, finances (expenses, revenues, debt, reserves,
rates/fee schedules, other fiscal indicators), and staffing/management; 2) capacity of public services, programs
and facilities; service to disadvantaged communities; 3) shared services/facilities and collaboration; 4)
accountability, structure and efficiencies; 5) governance structure options; and 6) metrics specific to parks &
recreation services; and

WHEREAS, on April 14, 2021, the Commission held a public hearing to receive an overview of the Public
Review Draft MSR, receive public comments, and provide input; and

WHEREAS, on June 9, 2021, the Commission held a public hearing to receive the Final Draft MSR and
recommended determinations and SOI updates for certain agencies covered in the MSR, including the Pleasant Hill
Recreation & Park District (PHRPD); and

WHEREAS, at the public hearings, the Commission heard and received all oral and written protests,
objections, and evidence, which were made, presented, or filed, and all persons present were given an opportunity to
hear and be heard with respect to the MSR and SOI updates; and

WHEREAS, at the June 9, 2021 LAFCO meeting, the Commission deferred adopting the MSR/SOI update
for PHPRD and formed a subcommittee to meet with City of Lafayette and PHRPD representatives and interested
members of the public to further discuss the SOI update; and

WHEREAS, interested parties provided input to the LAFCO subcommittee; and

WHEREAS, the MSR contains the determinations required by §§56425 and 56430 relative to the SOI
update and MSR, respectively, for the PHRPD incorporated in this resolution; and

WHEREAS, the proposed action consists of adopting the MSR determinations and updating the SOI for the
PHRPD as presented in the 2™ round “Parks & Recreation Services” MSR; and

WHEREAS, adoption of the MSR is statutorily exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA), as MSRs are feasibility and planning studies for possible future actions that have not been
approved, adopted, or funded, pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Section 15262; and



WHEREAS, as set forth in State CEQA Guidelines section 15061(b)(3), approval of the SOI update is not

subject to CEQA because it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the SOI update will have a
significant effect on the environment.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Contra Costa LAFCO hereby adopts the following MSR
determinations for the PHRPD pursuant to §56430.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Contra Costa LAFCO retains the existing SOI for PHRPD as depicted in
Exhibit A (attached) and makes the following SOI determinations for the PHRPD pursuant to §56425.

MSR DETERMINATIONS

1
a)

b)

b)

c)
d)

Growth and Population Projections

The residential population served by PHRPD is projected to remain relatively stable, growing approximately
6%, between 2020 and 2040, for a total population in 2040 of approximately 43,975.

With expected growth of 0.3% per year, the District’s population is projected to grow more slowly than the
County’s population overall, which is expected to grow at an average of 0.72% per year.

The location and characteristics of any disadvantaged unincorporated communities within or contiguous
to the sphere of influence

There is a disadvantaged community located within the PHRPD’s SOI in the southern portion of the City of
Pleasant Hill, adjacent to the City of Walnut Creek. The community appears to have access to PHRPD parks,
including the 11-acre Pleasant Oaks Park which has benefitted from recent investment and is in “very good”
condition according to District staff.

Present and Planned Capacity of Public Facilities and Adequacy of Public Services, Including
Infrastructure Needs and Deficiencies

PHRPD offers nearly 260 acres of parkland, representing approximately 6.2 acres per 1,000 residents which
exceeds the District’s stated goals and is substantially greater than most other park and recreation providers
in the County.

PHRPD'’s active parks are well-amenitized with picnic and BBQ areas, tot lots, basketball courts, bocce
courts, and restrooms. There are also special feature parks such as the Pleasant Hill Aquatic Park.

The District adopted a Master Plan in February 2020 to guide park planning and investment.

PHRPD performs regular capital improvements that help maintain District parks and facilities in mostly
“very good” condition. There are some exceptions, and PHRPD staff noted that the Winslow Center, the
School House, and the Chilpancingo Park are in “poor” condition and in need of significant upgrades.
Pre-COVID, PHRPD offered robust recreational programming for all segments of the resident population
and sponsors a range of community events each year.

Financial Ability of Agencies to Provide Services

PHRPD has an annual operating budget of more than $9 million per year, with revenues primarily coming
from taxes, assessments, and charges for services, with a modest amount of additional revenue from grants
and money/reserves/property. Publicly available budget documents indicate that the District is adequately
funded and has the financial ability to provide robust services.

PHRPD publishes a 5-year Capital Improvement Program Plan each year that supports implementation of the
2020 Master Plan priorities. For the period FY 2021 through FY 2024, nearly $1.5 million of capital
improvements is identified.

COVID-19 has severely affected PHRPD’s ability to offer recreational programming, creating financial
vulnerability to monitor going forward.

The District’s parcel tax of $47 per parcel does not include a cost inflator; as such, the value of the annual
parcel tax erodes over time.

Page 2 of 4



5
a)

6)

b)
c)

d)

7)
a)

Status of, and Opportunities for, Shared Facilities
District staff reported that PHRPD shares some facilities with the Mt. Diablo Unified School District,
including softball fields at the middle and high schools and the maintenance yard.

Accountability for Community Service Needs, Including Governmental Structure and Operational
Efficiencies

PHRPD is accountable to its service population and provides transparent governance and operations
information. The District’s website provides access to the agendas and minutes for the Board meetings and its
various committees, as well as annual budgets and audits. The four standing committees include Budget and
Finance, Land and Facilities, Program, and Personnel. There is also a Senior Club Board.
The District fully responded to LAFCQO’s requests for information in a timely manner.
PHRPD makes efforts to reach out to the community through its catalog of available classes, activities and
community events called The Spotlight, which is a print publication sent out three times a year to 68,000 -
72,000 homes in Contra Costa County. Also, PHRPD sends an email news bulletin with current information
about the District each month, as well as a monthly Senior Newsletter for PHRPD’s Senior Center members.
The 2010 MSR found that while PHRPD meets the legal requirement for establishment of a subsidiary district
(of the City of Pleasant Hill) based on land area and registered voters, the District has functioned as an
independent agency since 1951 and continues to provide adequate services. While some boundary clean-up may
be appropriate, no changes to PHRPD’s governance are recommended.

Any Other Matter Related to Efficient Service Delivery, As Required by Commission Policy

COVID-19 is having a significant effect on PHRPD’s ability to offer recreational programs and sponsor
community events. While this has negatively affected the District’s revenues, there have been operational
savings that have partially off-set the loss in revenue.

SOI DETERMINATIONS

1. Present and planned land uses in the area, including agricultural and open-space lands
PHRPD'’s service boundary encompass the City of Pleasant Hill, a portion of the City of Lafayette (single
family residential), small portions of the City of Walnut Creek (commercial), a portion of the unincorporated
community of Waldon/Contra Costa Centre (commercial and multi-family residential), and the Reliez Valley
(residential). Land uses within the District are primarily residential, with some light industrial and
commercial areas. Land uses in the City of Pleasant Hill SOI area to the north of the City (along Pacheco
Boulevard) are residential and light industrial. PHRPD has no land use authority; County and city plans
include land uses and population growth that may impact the District’s service population. The
recommendation to retain the existing SOI will result in no changes in present and planned land uses.

2. Present and probable need for public facilities and services in the area
Population within PHRPD is expected to increase by approximately 0.3% annually. While there will be a
continued need for adequate park and recreational services in the District, the recommendation to retain the
existing SOI will not result in any changes in public facilities or services provided by PHRPD.

3. Present capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services that the agency provides or is
authorized to provide
PHRPD offers 260+ acres of parkland, representing approximately 6.5 acres per 1,000 residents which
exceeds the District’s stated goals and is substantially greater than most other park and recreation providers
in the County. PHRPD offers robust recreational programming for all segments of the resident population
and sponsors a range of community events each year. Retaining the existing SOI as proposed will not affect
the present capacity of public facilities and adequacy of services provided by PHRPD.

Page 3 of 4



4. Existence of any social or economic communities of interest in the area if the commission determines that
they are relevant to the agency
There is a disadvantaged community located within PHRPD’s SOI in the southern portion of the City of
Pleasant Hill, adjacent to the City of Walnut Creek. The recommendation to retain the existing SOI will not

affect the existence of any social or economic communities of interest in the area that are relevant to
PHRPD.

5. Nature, location, and extent of any functions or classes of services provided by existing districts.
PHRPD directly provides park maintenance and recreation programming throughout District boundary.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 11% day of August 2021.
AYES:

NOES:

ABSTENTIONS:

ABSENT:

Igor Skaredoff, Chair, Contra Costa LAFCO

I hereby certify that this is a correct copy of a resolution passed and adopted by the Commission on the date
stated above.

Lou Ann Texeira, Executive Officer

Page 4 of 4



Pleasant Hill Recreation & Park District and Sphere of Influence
pa—— ' _'\‘ /‘,'%(:\ ’a“ /

|| PHRPD L ; 6 1 PHRPD
"] PHRPD SOI ‘\ Exhibit A

- Parks maintained by PHRPD
r E Open Space owned by PHRPD ﬂ

:l_.._.! City Boundaries |
@ County Urban Limit Line [:
i,.r"\ ‘ . /’,/////}/2// /g(;\;‘e_.
Y /7 //// ' "’B"// CONCORD
QL V/ ‘s //j //\
%Alhambr“a\; 4, : 4 Chi ’g]a/k///,, o5 ¢ R
AN MARTINEZ X Q // F///k//% \*
27 / /Sainn‘gi% /
: ‘//% - S / | ,,I;‘%s}/;{;é{@,se >
: \ I{;:/// P PVEASA ‘»4// / @\Aé
) \ X - ” e(\x
y P77 Park Therae] 0(\\)@
X ;{, Grayson
’ . %odgez////.%,///
-.‘ //,,‘{{‘/’: é’%l—jié@r%e Boyd/Rd
- ///// ,
‘«,B////ku///;%%m e B o
) 7P % ,'(////Park \ /'¢
§ // a7
) 7 B
L AFAYETTE - ; eafy e [
By LAFCO action on WALNUT i -
06/09/2021_, Pleasant Hill| . S 0
Recreation & Park 1 N
District boundary and N P
SOl were approved

aaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaa

Conservation and Development, GIS Group




CONTRA COSTA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION
40 Muir Road, 1st Floor ® Martinez, CA 94553

e-mail: LouAnn.Texeira@lafco.cccounty.us

(925) 313-7133

MEMBERS ALTERNATE MEMBERS
Candace Andersen Federal Glover Diane Burgis
County Member County Member County Member
Lou Ann Texeira Donald A. Blubaugh Michael R. McGill Stanley Caldwell
) . Public Member Special District Member Special District Member
Executive Officer
Tom Butt Rob Schroder Charles R. Lewis, 1V
City Member City Member Public Member
Igor Skaredoff Edi Birsan
Special District Member City Member

August 11, 2021 (Agenda)

Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) AAUQUSS 1|1’ 20291
40 Muir Road, 1% Floor genda Item
Martinez, CA 94553

2"d Round “Cemetery Districts” Municipal Services Review and
Sphere of Influence Updates

Dear Members of the Commission:

OVERVIEW AND PROCESS: In October 2020, Contra Costa LAFCO initiated its 2@ Round “Cemetery
Districts” Municipal Services Review (MSR) and Sphere of Influence (SOI) updates.

MSRs provide an assessment of the range and adequacy of municipal services provided in the County and a basis for
making LAFCO determinations relating to growth & population; location/characteristics of disadvantaged
communities; capacity of public facilities, services and infrastructure; financial ability of agencies to provide
services; opportunities for shared facilities; and accountability, governance structure and operational efficiencies.

The MSR culminates in updating the SOIs for the subject agencies. The MSR is an important tool for LAFCO in
fulfilling its legislative mandate to coordinate the efficient and logical development of local government agencies and
services and in establishing future service boundary changes.

Planwest Partners, Inc. prepared the “Cemetery Districts” MSR. On June 9, 2021, the Commission received an
overview of the Public Review Draft “Cemetery Districts” MSR, which covers the Alamo Lafayette Cemetery
District (ALCD) and the Byron Brentwood Knightsen Union Cemetery District (BBKUCD).

The 2" round “Cemetery Districts” MSR focuses on the following:

Updating agency profile data including growth and population, finances (i.e., expenses, revenues, debt, reserves,
endowment fund, fees, net position, other fiscal indicators), and staffing/management

Capacity of public services, capital needs, and service to disadvantaged communities

Shared services/facilities and collaboration

Accountability, structure and efficiencies

Governance structure options

FEFEE F

Following the June 9" LAFCO hearing, the consultants updated the MSR to reflect Commissioner, local agencies,
and public comments. The Final Draft Cemetery Districts MSR was released on July 24™.

On August 11", the Commission will hold a public hearing at which time the consultants will provide an overview
of the updates. The Commission will also receive public comment, consider accepting the Final MSR, make the
required MSR and SOI determinations, and update the SOIs for the two cemetery districts.



Cemetery Districts MSR/SOI Updates
August 11, 2021 (Agenda)
Page 2

DISCUSSION: The 2" Round Cemetery Services MSR reviews the ALCD and BBKUCD. A brief description of
each district is provided below.

+ ALCD was formed in 1937 and provides burial services, year-round maintenance, preservation of interment

plots, and records management for two cemeteries. The District owns, operates, and maintains the Alamo and
Lafayette cemeteries. The ALCD service area comprises a majority of the City of Lafayette and the Town of
Danville, along with portions of the cities of Walnut Creek and San Ramon, unincorporated communities of
Blackhawk and Diablo, and portions of the unincorporated communities of Alamo and Waldon. The ALCD
service boundary is 84+ square miles and serves a population of approximately 170,455. ALCD has three Board
members, a District Manager, a District Assistant and two groundskeepers.

BBKUCD was formed in 1928 and provides burial services, year-round maintenance, preservation of interment
plots, and records management for one cemetery located in Brentwood. The BBKUCD service area includes
the City of Brentwood and the eastern portion of the City of Oakley; the unincorporated communities of
Discovery Bay, Byron, Knightsen; the eastern Morgan Territory which is largely mountainous open space; the
Los Vaqueros Reservoir and surrounding watershed; Veale Tract and the Delta islands of Bethel, Jersey,
Bradford, Webb, Quimby, Holland, Palm, Orwood, and Coney. The BBKUCD service area is 203+ square
miles and serves a population of approximately 82,719. BBKUCD has three Board members, a District
Manager, a part-time office assistant, and three full-time groundskeepers. Recently, BBKUCD hired the ALCD
District Manager who works part-time to assist with administration and finances.

The 2" Round Cemetery Districts MSR includes an analysis of the MSR and SOI determinations which are
summarized below and included in the attached LAFCO resolutions.

Municipal Service Review Determinations - In accordance with the MSR, LAFCO must prepare written
determinations relating to the following factors:

1.
2.

No ok

Growth and population projections for the affected area

The location and characteristics of any disadvantaged unincorporated communities (DUCs) within or
contiguous to the SOI*

Present and planned capacity of public facilities, adequacy of public services, and infrastructure needs or
deficiencies including needs or deficiencies related to sewers, municipal and industrial water, and structural fire
protection in any DUCs within or contiguous to the SOI

Financial ability of agencies to provide services

Status of, and opportunities for, shared facilities

Accountability for community service needs, including governmental structure and operational efficiencies
Any other matter related to effective or efficient service delivery, as required by commission policy

*Note: Contra Costa LAFCO looks at “disadvantaged communities” which includes both incorporated and
unincorporated areas.

The MSR report includes an analysis of each of these factors as reflected in attached LAFCO resolutions. The table
below provides a summary of MSR determinations for ALCD and BBKUCD.

MSR Determination | ALCD BBKUCD
Growth and Current population is approximately Current population is approximately 82,719.
Population 170,455. Population growth for the service | Population growth for the service area is

area is expected to be less than or equal to | expected to be less than or equal to the
the County average of 0.97%, for an County average of 0.97% for an estimated
estimated population of 186,000 by 2030. | population of 89,000 by 2030.




Cemetery Districts MSR/SOI Updates
August 11, 2021 (Agenda)
Page 3

MSR Determination

ALCD

BBKUCD

Disadvantaged
communities (DAC)

There is currently one DAC within the
ALCD boundary located in the Saranap/
Rossmoor area.

There are currently two DACs within the
BBKUCD boundary including Bethel Island
and a small area in the City of Brentwood.

Capacity and Services

ALCD appears to have sufficient interment
capacity for the next 15-20 years based on
estimated population growth. However,
capacity is limited to niche burial of
cremation remains at the Alamo Cemetery.
It is projected that the Alamo cemetery can
accommodate 3.7 year of cremation
remains with no current space available for
body burials. The Lafayette cemetery can
accommodate 2.3 years of cremation
remains and 15.9 years of body burials.

-In May 2020, BBKUCD purchased 10 acres
of land for future constituent need. There is no
plan for property development at this time.

-BBKUCD has a total of 499 cremation
niches with 129 available for future use.
Based on the number of niche burials in FY
2019-20, there is enough capacity for
approximately 12 years.

-BBKUCD has not historically tracked in
ground cemetery capacity information and is
in the process of implementing a new system
to do so. With the recent purchase of land, it
is expected there will be adequate capacity to
meet demand in the foreseeable future.

-BBKUCD does not currently maintain a
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). District staff
is drafting a CIP. It is recommended that the
CIP be reviewed annually and updated to
reflect changing needs and priorities.

Finances

ALCD relies on property tax revenue and
fees for service. Based on financial audits,
ALCD shows an annual surplus of
revenues over expenditures which allows
ALCD to increase its net position over
time and plan for large capital outlay
projects. The MSR recommends
improvements to financial transparency.

BBKUCD is updating its financial practices
and budgets which shows a net surplus of
funds and a small gain to accommodate
unforeseen expenses or to place in reserves.
BBKUCD has enough revenue to cover
current expenses. The MSR recommends
improvements to financial transparency.

Shared Facilities and
Service

There is currently no facility sharing. The
ALCD District Manager works part-time
as a Consulting Manager with BBKUCD to
assist with operating, finance, personnel,
and governance related needs.

There is currently no facility sharing. The
ALCD District Manager works part-time as a
Consulting Manager with BBKUCD to assist
with operating, finance, personnel, and
governance related needs.

Community Service
Needs (governmental
structure, operational
efficiencies)

ALCD is governed by a 3-member Board
of Trustees. ALCD demonstrated
accountability and transparency by
disclosing financial and service-related
information in response to LAFCO
requests. ALCD has a website but needs to
include current financial information.

BBKUCD is governed by a 3-member Board
of Trustees. BBKUCD demonstrated
accountability and transparency by
disclosing financial and service-related
information in response to LAFCO requests.
BBKUCD has a website but needs to include
current financial information.

Other matters related
to effective or
efficient service
delivery

The pandemic delayed CIP projects due to
limited contractor availability, and reduced
demand for service due in part to increased
restrictions on burial services.

The pandemic caused unexpected changes in
how BBKUCD can sell sites and restrictions
on burial services.




Cemetery Districts MSR/SOI Updates
August 11, 2021 (Agenda)
Page 4

Sphere of Influence (SOI) Determinations - In accordance with the MSR, LAFCO must prepare written
determinations relating to the following relevant factors:

1. Present and planned land uses in the area, including agricultural and open-space lands
2. Present and probable need for public facilities and services in the area
3. Present capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services that the agency provides or is authorized to

provide

4. Existence of any social or economic communities of interest in the area if the Commission determines that they
are relevant to the agency
5. Nature, location, and extent of any functions or classes of services provided by the existing district

The MSR report includes an analysis of each of these factors as reflected in attached LAFCO resolutions. The table
below provides a summary of SOI determinations for ALCD and BBKUCD.

SOI Determination

ALCD

BBKUCD

Present and planned
land use

ALCD encompasses various land uses and
business activities within its service
boundary. ALCD has no land use
authority; County and city plans include
land uses and population growth that may
impact ALCD services. No changes in land
uses will result from this SOI update.

BBKUCD encompasses various land uses
including suburban (low density) residential
and commercial development; watershed,;
agricultural, pasture, and Delta recreation
land uses. No changes in land uses will result
from this SOI update.

Present and probable
need for public
facilities & services

Growth within ALCD’s service area is
projected to be less than one percent. There
is a present and probable need for ALCD
services.

BBKUCD appears to have sufficient
interment capacity for the next 15-20 years,
accounting for population growth. There is a
present and probable need for BBKUCD
services.

Capacity of public
facilities and
adequacy of public
services

ALCD appears to have sufficient interment
capacity for the next 15-20 years based on
estimated population growth. However,
capacity is limited to niche burial of
cremation remains at the Alamo Cemetery.

The current capacity for in ground burials is
unknown. There appears to be adequate
capacity for 12+ years of cremation niche
internments. The District’s current service
appears to be adequate to serve current and
future demand. Capital improvements are
needed to maintain and potentially improve
the level of service.

Social or economic
communities of
interest

The ALCD community of interest is the
District’s service boundary. There is one
DAC within the ALCD boundary located
in the Saranap/Rossmoor area.

The BBKUCD community of interest is the
District’s service boundary. There are two
DACs within BBKUCD including an area in
the City of Brentwood and the
unincorporated Bethel Island community.

Nature, location,
functions and classes
of service

ALCD owns, operates, and maintains the
Alamo and Lafayette cemeteries. The
district serves a portion of the City of
Walnut Creek, most of Town of Danville
and City of Lafayette, the eastern portion
of the City of San Ramon, and portions of
the unincorporated communities of Alamo,
Blackhawk, Diablo and Waldon.

BBKUCD owns, operates, and maintains the
Union Cemetery. The District serves the City
of Brentwood, portions of the cities of
Antioch and Oakley, the unincorporated
communities of Discovery Bay, Byron,
Knightsen, Morgan Territory, Veale Tract,
and the Delta islands of Bethel, Jersey,
Bradford, Webb, Quimby, Holland, Palm,
Orwood, and Coney.




Cemetery Districts MSR/SOI Updates
August 11, 2021 (Agenda)
Page 5

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS

The MSR is a study, intended to serve as an informational tool to help LAFCO, local agencies and the public better
understand the public service structure in Contra Costa County. The MSR study and determinations are statutorily
exempt under §15262 of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines. The LAFCO SOI updates
are categorically exempt under §15061(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. Receive the staff and consultants’ presentations and open the public hearing to receive public comments;

2. After receiving public comments close the hearing;

3. Provide comments as desired,

4. Determine that the MSR project is statutorily exempt pursuant to §15262 of the CEQA Guidelines;

5. Determine that the SOI updates are categorically exempt pursuant to §15061(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines;
6. Accept the 2" round Final Cemetery Districts MSR; and

7. Adopt the MSR/SOI determinations for ALCD and BBKUC by resolutions attached hereto.

Sincerely,

LOU ANN TEXEIRA
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

C: Distribution

Exhibit
A — Alamo-Lafayette Cemetery District and Coterminous SOI
B — Byron Brentwood Knightsen Union Cemetery District and Coterminous SOI

Attachment
1. MSR and SOI Resolution - ALCD
2. MSR and SOI Resolution - BBKUCD



Attachment 1
RESOLUTION OF THE CONTRA COSTA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION
COMMISSION ADOPTING MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW AND
SPHERE OF INFLUENCE DETERMINATIONS FOR THE
ALAMO LAFAYETTE CEMETERY DISTRICT

WHEREAS, the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Governmental Reorganization Act of 2000 (California
Government Code §56000 et seq.) provides that a Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) shall adopt
Spheres of Influence (SOIs) for each local governmental agency within its jurisdiction [§56425(a)] and update SOIs
every five years, as necessary [§56425(g)]; and

WHEREAS, the SOI is the primary planning tool for LAFCO and defines the probable physical boundary
and service area of a local agency as determined by LAFCO; and

WHEREAS, §56430 requires that in order to update SOIs, the Commission shall prepare a Municipal
Service Review (MSR) prior to or in conjunction with the SOI update; and

WHEREAS, the Commission has undertaken its 2™ round “Cemetery Services” MSR covering the two
cemetery districts in Contra Costa County; and

WHEREAS, this MSR, as prepared by Planwest Partners, Inc., focuses on 1) updating profile data
including growth and population, finances (expenses, revenues, debt, reserves, fees, net position, endowment
fund, and other fiscal indicators) and staffing/management; 2) capacity and capital needs; 3) service to
disadvantaged communities; 4) shared services/facilities and collaboration; and 5) accountability, structure and
efficiencies; and

WHEREAS, on June 9, 2021, the Commission held a public hearing to receive an overview of the Public
Review Draft MSR Cemetery Districts MSR, receive public comments, and provide input; and

WHEREAS, on August 11, 2021, the Commission held a public hearing to receive the Final Draft MSR and
recommended MSR and SOI determinations and SOI updates for the two cemetery districts covered in the MSR,
including the Alamo Lafayette Cemetery District (ALCD); and

WHEREAS, at the public hearings, the Commission heard and received all oral and written comments,
evidence, and protests which were made, presented, and filed, and all persons present were given an opportunity to
hear and be heard with respect to the MSR and SOI updates; and

WHEREAS, the MSR contains the determinations required by §§56425 and 56430 relative to the SOI
update and MSR, respectively, for the ALCD incorporated in this resolution; and

WHEREAS, the proposed action consists of adopting the MSR and SOI determinations and updating the
SOI for the ALCD as presented in the 2™ round “Cemetery Districts” MSR; and

WHEREAS, adoption of the MSR is statutorily exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA), as MSRs are feasibility and planning studies for possible future actions that have not been
approved, adopted, or funded, pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Section 15262; and

WHEREAS, as set forth in State CEQA Guidelines section 15061(b)(3), approval of the SOI update is not
subject to CEQA because it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the SOI update will have a
significant effect on the environment.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Contra Costa LAFCO hereby adopts the following MSR
determinations for ALCD pursuant to §56430; retains the existing coterminous SOI for ALCD as shown in Exhibit
A (attached); and adopts the following SOI determinations pursuant to §56425.



MSR DETERMINATIONS

Growth and Population Projections

The ALCD estimated population is 170,455. Population growth for the service area is expected to be less than or
equal to the County average of 0.97%, for an estimated population of 186,000 by 2030.

b) The population estimate assumes a constant growth rate which may fluctuate due to the current uncertainties
surrounding the COVID-19 pandemic and other unforeseen factors. Once the 2020 decennial census data is
released, a more accurate population estimate for ALCD can be calculated.

The location and characteristics of any disadvantaged communities within or contiguous to the
Sphere of Influence.

a) There is one disadvantaged community within the ALCD boundary located in the Saranap/Rossmoor area
(southwestern area of Walnut Creek).

Present and planned capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services, including
infrastructure needs or deficiencies.
a) There is currently adequate cemetery capacity to serve the ALCD community for the next five to seven

years. Although Alamo Cemetery has no capacity for full body burials, Lafayette Cemetery can
accommodate full body burials over the next 15 years.

b) ALCD is working on a fund impact report based on estimated market costs for Capital Asset Improvements.
The report identifies much needed improvements for District infrastructure including building maintenance,
plumbing, and internet updates.

Financial ability of agencies to provide services.
a) ALCD relies primarily on property tax revenue and fees for service.

b) Based on regular audits, ALCD shows an annual surplus of revenues over expenditures including in FY
2019-20. This allows ALCD to increase its net position over time and plan for large capital outlay projects.

c) ALCD does not currently submit adopted annual budgets to the County Auditor-Controller. It is
recommended the District forward adopted budgets to the County Auditor-Controller in accordance with
California Health & Safety Code §9070(c); this will increase transparency for ALCD.

Status of, and opportunities for, shared facilities.

a) ALCD is not presently engaged in facility sharing, such as sharing with private service providers. The ALCD
District Manager works part-time as a Consulting Manager with BBKUCD to assist with operating, finance,
personnel, and governance related needs.

Accountability for community service needs, including governmental structure and operational

efficiencies.

a) ALCD is governed by a three-member Board of Trustees. The District demonstrated accountability and
transparency by disclosing financial and service-related information in response to LAFCO requests. ALCD

has a website. It is recommended that the District add current financial information to comply with Special
District website regulations (SB 929) that came into effect January 1, 2020.

Any other matter related to effective or efficient service delivery, as required by commission policy.

a) ALCD has experienced delays in completing the projects listed in its CIP due to the COVID-19 pandemic
and limited contractor availability. Also, the pandemic reduced demand for service due in part to increased
COVID-19 restrictions on burial protocols which caused the Board to revise the FY 2020-21 budget.

b) No changes to the current boundary and/or SOI are proposed at this time. It is recommended that the SOI
remain coterminous with the District’s service boundary.

Page 2 of 3



SOI DETERMINAITONS

1.

Present and planned land uses in the area, including agricultural and open-space lands.

ALCD encompasses a variety of land uses and business activities and comprises a majority of the City of
Lafayette and Town of Danville, portions of the cities of Walnut Creek and San Ramon, unincorporated
communities of Blackhawk and Diablo, and a portion of the unincorporated communities of Alamo and
Walden. ALCD has no land use authority. County and city plans include land uses and population growth
that may impact ALCD services. No changes in land uses will result from this SOI update.

Present and probable need for public facilities and services in the area.

Projected growth within the District’s service area is anticipated to be less than one percent. There is a
present and probable need for ALCD services. No changes in services or facilities will result from this SOI
update.

Present capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services that the agency provides or is
authorized to provide.

ALCD appears to have sufficient interment capacity for the next 15-20 years based on estimated population
growth. Capacity is limited to niche burial of cremation remains at the Alamo Cemetery. It is projected that
the Alamo cemetery can accommodate 3.7 year of cremation remains with no current space available for
body burials. The Lafayette cemetery can accommodate 2.3 years of cremation remains and 15.9 years of
body burials. Prior to considering expanded services outside the current service area, ALCD must
demonstrate the ability to provide services to areas within its existing service boundary.

Existence of any social or economic communities of interest in the area if the commission determines
that they are relevant to the agency.

The ALCD was formed in 1937 and serves a majority of the City of Lafayette and the Town of Danville,
portions of the cities of Walnut Creek and San Ramon, unincorporated communities of Blackhawk and
Diablo, and portions of the unincorporated communities of Alamo and Walden. There is one disadvantaged
community within the ALCD boundary located in the Saranap/Rossmoor area. These service areas have a
social and economic interest in ALCD.

Nature, location, and extent of any functions or classes of services provided by the existing district.
ALCD owns, operates, and maintains the Alamo and Lafayette cemeteries. The district serves a portion of
the City of Walnut Creek, most of Town of Danville and City of Lafayette, the eastern portion of the City of
San Ramon, and portions of the unincorporated communities of Alamo, Blackhawk, Diablo and Walden.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 11" day of August 2021.

AYES:
NOES:

ABSTENTIONS:
ABSENT:

Igor Skaredoff, Chair, Contra Costa LAFCO

I hereby certify that this is a correct copy of a resolution passed and adopted by the Commission on the date stated above.

Lou Ann Texeira, Executive Officer

Page 3 of 3



Alamo-Lafayette Cemetery District and Coterminous SOI

Exhibit A

D Unincorporated
D Walnut Creek

were approved

N\ \

. & Ln o a R
Briones Pleasantom "~ {/\/', @
R ] | Hill ’ " Concord
eservowr Geary|Rd Z; Treat B\ \{9\'\'36\0\1 Clayton
r < e/,,‘”
Ave
Lafayette ﬁ alnut/Creek 4/;06 Yargy, .
% B
a %
Q Saranap 06’0@
2, 0ninda
Y Unincorporated
o
z
%
%%}
)\ & ’%@0 Alamo
Ty 8 >
\ i ey
N s RS >
<\\ Moraga 630
- Diablo
//
! X o
{ % &
\/‘ '50,\?, c'a“\‘o
l\\\\\~ F7N
\\ & \\
-~ \\
ﬂ \\ Danwyille ' / 4 )
— S —— lackhawk?//Camino”Tassajara
\ V///// Alamo-Lafayette Cemetery District __—_‘_“*-——~_\_\_\_
O Alamo Cemetery \\\\
© Lafayette Cemetery \\\
D Clayton nn Leandro \\
D Concord Reservoir N\ . ’
D Danville \ ‘ gollinger C
D Lafayette &
D Moraga ré‘,’
\ ] orinca 5
rin £
[ Preasant Hil By LAFCO action on 08/11/2021, &
[ san Ramon Alamo Lafayette Cemetery District _
boundary and coterminous SOI —

Map Created 8/2/2021
by Contra Costa County Department of
Conservation and Development, GIS Group
30 Muir Road, Martinez, CA 94553
37:59:41.791N 122:07:03.756W

This map was created by the Contra Costa County Department of Conservation and
Development with data from the Contra Costa County GIS Program. Some

base data, primarily City Limits, is derived from the CA State Board of Equalization's
tax rate areas. While obligated to use this data the County assumes no responsibility for
its accuracy. This map contains copyrighted information and may not be altered. It may be
reproduced in its current state if the source is cited. Users of this map agree to read and
accept the County of Contra Costa disclaimer of liability for geographic information.




Attachment 2
RESOLUTION OF THE CONTRA COSTA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION
COMMISSION ADOPTING MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW AND
SPHERE OF INFLUENCE DETERMINATIONS FOR THE
BYRON-BRENTWOOD-KNIGHTSEN UNION CEMETERY DISTRICT

WHEREAS, the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Governmental Reorganization Act of 2000 (California
Government Code §56000 et seq.) provides that a Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) shall adopt
Spheres of Influence (SOIs) for each local governmental agency within its jurisdiction [§56425(a)] and update SOIs
every five years, as necessary [§56425(g)]; and

WHEREAS, the SOI is the primary planning tool for LAFCO and defines the probable physical boundary
and service area of a local agency as determined by LAFCO; and

WHEREAS, §56430 requires that in order to update SOIs, the Commission shall prepare a Municipal
Service Review (MSR) prior to or in conjunction with the SOI update; and

WHEREAS, the Commission has undertaken its 2™ round “Cemetery Services” MSR covering the two
cemetery districts in Contra Costa County; and

WHEREAS, this MSR, as prepared by Planwest Partners, Inc., focuses on 1) updating profile data including
growth and population, finances (expenses, revenues, debt, reserves, fees, net position, endowment fund, and other
fiscal indicators) and staffing/management; 2) capacity and capital needs; 3) service to disadvantaged communities;
4) shared services/facilities and collaboration; and 5) accountability, structure and efficiencies; and

WHEREAS, on June 9, 2021, the Commission held a public hearing to receive an overview of the Public
Review Draft MSR Cemetery Districts MSR, receive public comments, and provide input; and

WHEREAS, on August 11, 2021, the Commission held a public hearing to receive the Final Draft MSR and
recommended SOI and MSR determinations and SOI updates for the two cemetery districts covered in the MSR,
including the Byron-Brentwood-Knightsen Union Cemetery District (BBKUCD); and

WHEREAS, at the public hearings, the Commission heard and received all oral and written comments and
evidence which were made, presented, and filed, and all persons present were given an opportunity to hear and be
heard with respect to the MSR and SOI updates; and

WHEREAS, the MSR contains the determinations required by §§56425 and 56430 relative to the SOI
update and MSR, respectively, for the BBKUCD incorporated in this resolution; and

WHEREAS, the proposed action consists of adopting the MSR and SOI determinations and updating the
SOI for the BBKUCD as presented in the 2™ round “Cemetery Districts” MSR; and

WHEREAS, adoption of the MSR is statutorily exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA), as MSRs are feasibility and planning studies for possible future actions that have not been
approved, adopted, or funded, pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Section 15262; and

WHEREAS, as set forth in State CEQA Guidelines section 15061(b)(3), approval of the SOI update is not
subject to CEQA because it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the SOI update will have a
significant effect on the environment.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Contra Costa LAFCO hereby adopts the following MSR
determinations for BBKUCD pursuant to §56430; retains the existing coterminous SOI for BBKUCD as shown in
Exhibit A (attached); and adopts the following SOI determinations pursuant to §56425.



MSR DETERMINATIONS

1.

3.

5,

6.

Growth and Population Projections

a) The BBKUCD estimated population is 82,719. Population growth for the service area is expected to be less
than or equal to the County average of 0.97%, for an estimated population of approximately 89,000 by 2030.

b) The population estimate assumes a constant growth rate which may fluctuate due to the current uncertainties
surrounding the COVID-19 pandemic and other unforeseen factors. Once the 2020 decennial census data is
available, a more accurate population estimate for BBKUCD can be calculated.

The location and characteristics of any disadvantaged communities within or contiguous to the Sphere of
Influence.

a) Two disadvantaged communities are identified within BBKUCD including the community of Bethel Island
with a median household income (MHI) of $38,801, which is 48% of the statewide MHI, and a small area in the
City of Brentwood, with a MHI of $37,875 (2018).

Present and planned capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services, including infrastructure
needs or deficiencies.

a) InMay 2020, BBKUCD purchased 10 acres of land located at 1000 Smith Lane in Byron for future
constituent need and in keeping with prior MSR recommendations. However, there is no plan for property
development at this time.

b) There are a total of 499 cremation niches with 129 available for further use within the District. Based on the
number of niche burials in FY 2019-20, there is capacity for approximately 12 years.

c¢) BBKUCD has not historically tracked in ground cemetery capacity information and is in the process of
implementing a new system to track capacity. With the purchase of the new land, it is anticipated there will
be adequate capacity to meet District demand for the foreseeable future.

d) BBKUCD does not currently maintain a Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), although the District is drafting
one to bring to the Board this summer. It is recommended that a CIP be annually reviewed and updated to
reflect changing needs and priorities.

Financial ability of agencies to provide services.
a) BBKUCD relies primarily on property tax revenue and fees for service.

b) BBKUCD is updating its financial practices and budgets to determine a net surplus of funds. This will
provide for a small gain to accommodate unforeseen expenses or to place in reserves and indicate that
BBKUCD has sufficient revenue to cover current District expenses.

c¢) BBKUCD is not currently submitting adopted annual budgets to the County Auditor-Controller. It is
recommended the District forward its adopted budgets to the County Auditor-Controller in compliance with
California Health & Safety Code §9070(c); this will increase transparency for BBKUCD.

Status of, and opportunities for, shared facilities.

a) BBKUD is not presently engaged in facility sharing, such as sharing with private service providers. The
ALCD District Manager works part-time as a Consulting Manager with BBKUCD to assist with operating,
finance, personnel, and governance related needs.

Accountability for community service needs, including governmental structure and operational efficiencies.

a) BBKUCD is governed by a three-member Board of Trustees. The District demonstrated accountability and
transparency by disclosing financial and service-related information in response to LAFCO requests.
BBKUCD has a website but needs to include current financial information and meeting minutes to comply
with state law.



7. Any other matter related to effective or efficient service delivery, as required by commission policy.

a)

b)

The COVID-19 pandemic caused unexpected changes in how BBKUCD is permitted to sell sites and
perform all burial services. At the height of the pandemic, the State of California and the Centers for Disease
Control permitted only two people to select and finalize the purchase of cemetery lots and niches, and 10 —
20 people to attend burials

No changes to the current boundary or SOI are proposed at this time. It is recommended that the SOI remain
coterminous with BBKUCD’s service boundary.

SOI DETERMINATIONS

1.

Present and planned land uses in the area, including agricultural and open-space lands.

BBKUCD includes the City of Brentwood and the unincorporated community of Discovery Bay. Land uses
in these areas consist primarily of suburban (low density) residential and commercial development. The
District also includes the unincorporated communities of Byron, Knightsen, and the eastern portion of the
City of Oakley. Land uses in these areas consist primarily of agricultural land. Other areas within BBKUCD
include eastern Morgan Territory which is largely mountainous open space, the Los Vaqueros Reservoir and
surrounding watershed, Veale Tract, and the Delta islands of Bethel, Jersey, Bradford, Webb, Quimby,
Holland, Palm, Orwood, and Coney which consist primarily of agricultural, pasture, and Delta recreation
land uses. No changes in land uses will result from this SOI update.

Present and probable need for public facilities and services in the area.
BBKUCD appears to have sufficient interment capacity for the next 15-20 years, accounting for population
growth. However, there is currently limited funding for capital improvements.

Present capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services that the agency provides or is

authorized to provide.

a) The current capacity for in ground burials is unknown. However, there appears to be adequate capacity
for approximately 12 years of cremation niche interments.

b) The current level of public services provided by BBKUCD appears to be adequate to serve current and
future demand. However, the District needs several capital improvement projects to maintain and
potentially improve the level of service for BBKUCD. These include upgrades to the District office,
updated maintenance equipment, and improvement of recently purchased lands.

Existence of any social or economic communities of interest in the area if the commission determines that
they are relevant to the agency.

BBKUCD was formed in 1928 and serves the unincorporated communities of Byron, Knightsen, Discovery
Bay, Bethel Island, the eastern portion of Morgan Territory, the Delta islands of Jersey, Bradford, Webb,
Quimby, Holland, Palm, Orwood, and Coney; the City of Brentwood, the eastern portion of the City of
Oakley, and a small portion of the City of Antioch. BBKUCD relies primarily on property taxes and service
fees. There are two disadvantaged communities within BBKUCD including an area in the City of Brentwood
and the unincorporated Bethel Island community. The social and economic community of interest includes
those cities and communities served by BBKUCD.

Nature, location, and extent of any functions or classes of services provided by the existing district.
BBKUCD owns, operates, and maintains the Union Cemetery. The District serves the City of Brentwood, a
portion of the City of Oakley, the unincorporated communities of Discovery Bay, Byron, Knightsen, Morgan
Territory, Veale Tract, the Delta islands of Bethel, Jersey, Bradford, Webb, Quimby, Holland, Palm,
Orwood, and Coney, and small portion of the City of Antioch.



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 11" day of August 2021.

AYES:

NOES:
ABSTENTIONS:
ABSENT:

Igor Skaredoft, Chair, Contra Costa LAFCO

I hereby certify that this is a correct copy of a resolution passed and adopted by the Commission on the date
stated above.

Lou Ann Texeira, Executive Officer



Byron Brentwood Knightsen Union Cemetery District and Coterminous SOI

my
Bre?z ~’%//%L{/{///’ ////

AT

i /////}r//
Lo ////I

incorporated
L A N

)

T

o Ri

\\Exhibit B

WaterBodies

V///A Cemetery District

Sui %Z///////W///y/ """ / 1
D ﬁ ;;\k ley ///:// »
\} )
Uningorporated Z
0
Z{% s/%};aque
j () Union Cemetery /v/ ////

Ramon

By LAFCO action

on 08/11/2021, Byron Brentwood
Knightsen Union Cemetery District
boundary and coterminous SOI
were approved

Map Created 8/2/2021
by Contra Costa County Department of
onservation and Development, GIS Group
30 Muir Road, Martinez, CA 94553

37:59:41.791N 122:07:03.756W




CONTRA COSTA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION
40 Muir Road, 1st Floor ® Martinez, CA 94553

e-mail: LouAnn.Texeira@lafco.cccounty.us

(925) 313-7133

MEMBERS ALTERNATE MEMBERS
Candace Andersen Federal Glover Diane Burgis
County Member County Member County Member
Lou Ann Texeira Donald A. Blubaugh Michael R. McGill Stanley Caldwell
) . Public Member Special District Member Special District Member
Executive Officer
Tom Butt Rob Schroder Charles R. Lewis, 1V
City Member City Member Public Member
Igor Skaredoff Edi Birsan
Special District Member City Member

August 11, 2021

August 11, 2021 (Agenda) Agenda Item 10

Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission
40 Muir Road, 1% Floor
Martinez, CA 94553

CALAFCO Annual Conference, Call for Board Member Nominations and
Achievement Award Nominations

Dear Commissioners:
The annual CALAFCO conference will be held October 6-8, 2021 at the Hyatt Regency Newport

Beach John Wayne Airport. Conference and registration information is attached (Attachment 1),
and conference updates are posted on the CALAFCO website at www.calafco.org.

Each year, prior to the annual conference, CALAFCO calls for Achievement Award and Board of
Director nominations. The CALAFCO Board of Directors recently updated the CALAFCO
Achievement Awards program (Attachment 2). Nominations are now open for both the 2020 and
2021 CALAFCO Achievement Awards (there were no awards in 2020 due to the pandemic). The
awards recognize outstanding achievements by individuals and organizations committed to
LAFCO goals and principles. The deadline for award nominations is August 13, 2021. LAFCO
staff proposes to nominate Contra Costa Water District and Diablo Water District for their
continued efforts to extend municipal water service to disadvantaged communities — see draft
nomination (Attachment 3).

CALAFCO is also calling for nominations for seats on the CALAFCO Board of Directors
(Attachment 4). There are eight seats up for election this Fall - two from each of the four regions.
The Coastal Region seats include a City Member and a Public Member. The deadline for Board
nominations is September 7, 2021. Election of CALAFCO Board members and Achievement
Award ceremony will take place at the annual CALAFCO conference on October 7, 2021.
Commissioner McGill serves on the CALAFCO Board representing the Coastal Region.
Commissioner McGill is the CALAFCO Immediate Past Chair and serves on several CALAFCO
committees including the Legislative Committee.


http://www.calafco.org/

CALAFCO Annual Conference
August 11, 2021
Page 2

The CALAFCO bylaws require that each LAFCO designate a voting delegate to vote on behalf
of their Commission. The voting delegate may be a commissioner, alternate commissioner, or
executive officer. Voting delegates must be designated by September 7, 2021.

Recommendations: Advise as to any Board and Achievement Award nominations, appoint a
voting delegate and alternate, and direct staff to forward the information to CALAFCO.

Sincerely,

LOU ANN TEXEIRA
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Attachment 1 — CALAFCO Conference Announcement

Attachment 2 - CALAFCO Achievement Awards Nomination Packet
Attachment 3 — Contra Costa LAFCO Achievement Award Nomination - DRAFT
Attachment 4 - CALAFCO Board Nomination Packet



Announcing Atiachment
The 2021 CALAFCO
Annual Conference C ‘Af

Hosted by CALAFCO
October 6 -8

Hyatt Regency, Newport Beach
Conveniently located near the John Wayne Airport

(GOLDEN §TATE

2021 ANNUAL CONFERENCE

Highly Relevant & Diverse / \ It's been 2 years since we've
General & Breakout Special seen you...are you missing
Session Topics Highlights each other?
LAFCo 101
®» The New Era: State of the State in An introduction to LAFCo
terms of extreme water and fire and LAFCo law for
) ) Commissioners, Staff,
issues, and what it means for and anyone interested Regional Roundtable discussions
LAFCo* (Wed) in learning more on current regional LAFCo issues
» Looming pension liabilities (Thu) about LAFCo Extended roundtable discussion
= City/District fundi d t for LAFCo legal counsel
ity/District funding and property Wednesday from Networking breakfasts and
tax agreements (Thu) 10:00 a.m. to Noon extended breaks
® Post-pandemic workforce best Welcome Reception Wednesday
; o Thursday Pre-dinner Reception &
ractices for hiring staff (Thu
P ] - g (Thu) breaks with Sponsors
® Hot topic facilitated breakouts - Special Thursday Awards Banquet Thursday
two rounds (Th afternoon session:
v B u _ ( ) Hyatt Regency Newport Beach
® The “bilities” of water and the Hot Topic Roundtables at the John Wayne Airport
LAFCo connection: Availability, Join us for a special
accessibility, and portability (along kind of breakout
ith quality and state mandates)* session format:
with quality ) topical roundtables.
(Wed) Choose the topics that
®» (Cyber Security threats to LAFCos are of most interest to
and local agencies* (Fri) you anqjom t.he.
S conversation. This is a
= Annual CALAFCO Legislative chance to share issues, Make your reservations now at the Hyatt
Update* (Fri) existing best practice Regency at the special CALAFCO rate of
= CALAFCO Annual Business Meeting S:é‘ﬁ'g:i ii:gv";teigae $194 (excludes tax and fees). Special
rates available 3 days pre- and post-
(for all CALAFCO members)* (Thu) solutions. Each round of conference on availz)a/billoity inclurd)es in-
the two-round breakouts - - ’
Note: The Program is subject to change. will be approx. 50 mins. room W'f'_ and parking, .
*Indicates General Session S Reservation cutoff date is 9/6/21.
Topical list still being
Propared and may include TO MAKE HOTEL RESERVATIONS,
Mark your calendar and o €2 PLEASE VISIT: https://www.hyatt.com/en-
lan to attend! recovery, local fire issues, US/group-booking/SNARJ/G-CALZ or call
p - local water issues. directly at 949-975-1234 and reference
. . . I CALAFCO event.
Registration is now open!
. . Visit www.calafco.org for Conference
Visit www.calafco.org CALAFCO details or call us at 916-442-6536.

Sheriog informstion and resources


https://www.hyatt.com/en-US/group-booking/SNARJ/G-CAL2
https://www.hyatt.com/en-US/group-booking/SNARJ/G-CAL2
http://www.calafco.org/

Attachment 2

CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF
LocAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSIONS

Date: May 24, 2021

To: CALAFCO Members
LAFCo Commissioners and Staff
Other Interested Organizations

From: CALAFCO Achievement Awards Committee

Subject: 2021 CALAFCO Achievement Award Nominations

On behalf of the Association, we are pleased to announce the newly updated CALAFCO Achievement Awards
program and the opening of the nomination period. During the past year while the Committee and program
were in hiatus due to the pandemic, the program underwent a comprehensive review and update. On April
30, 2021, the Board of Directors unanimously approved and adopted the program.

Each year, CALAFCO recognizes outstanding achievements by dedicated and committed individuals and/or
organizations from throughout the state at the Annual Conference Achievement Awards Ceremony. This year’s
ceremony will be on October 7 at the Hyatt Regency Newport Beach John Wayne Airport, during the awards
banquet.

Recognizing individual and organizational achievements is an important responsibility. It provides visible
recognition and support to those who go above and beyond in their work to advance the principles and goals
of the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act. We invite you to use this opportunity to nominate the individuals and
organizations you feel deserve this important recognition based on the criteria outlined. Please carefully
review the nomination instructions and the criteria for each category. Incomplete nominations will not be
considered by the Committee, nor will nominations that do not adhere to the submittal guidelines.

For this year only, the nomination period covers the 2020 and 2021 timeframe. This is because there were
no awards last year. This will be a one-time only expansion of the timeframe. SPEC/IFICALLY, THAT IS JULY 1,
2019 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2021. Please ensure your nomination highlights achievements only during this
timeframe.

To make a nomination, please use the following procedure:

1. Nominations may be made by an individual, a LAFCo, a CALAFCO Associate Member, or any other
organization.

2. Each nomination must meet the specific award category criteria for consideration. The Committee
will not consider any nomination for an award for any category other than the one for which it was
submitted. Duplicate nominations wil/ not be considered by the Committee.

3. Nominations must be submitted with a completed nomination form. Please use a separate form for
each nomination. The form is your opportunity to highlight the most important points of your
nomination.

4. Nomination Executive Summaries must be /imited to no more than 250 words in length. Nomination
Summaries must be limited to no more than 1,000 words or 2 pages in length maximum. You are
encouraged to write them in a clear, concise and understandable manner. If the Awards Committee
members require additional information, you will be contacted with that request. Any nomination
received that exceeds this amount will not be considered by the Committee.

1020 12th Street, Suite 222, Sacramento, CA 95814
Voice 916-442-6536 Fax 916-442-6535
www.calafco.org



5. All supporting information (e.g. reports, news articles, etc.) must be submitted with the nomination.

Limit supporting documentation to no more than 3 pages. If the Awards Committee members
require additional information, you will be contacted with that request. Any nomination received that
exceeds this amount will not be considered by the Committee.

All nomination materials must be submitted at one time and must be received by the deadline. No
late nominations will be accepted - no exceptions. Electronic submittals are required and must be
submitted as pdf document, using the fillable pdf document provided.

Nominations and supporting materials must be received no later than 3:00 p.m., Friday, August 13,
2021. Send nominations via e-mail to:

Stephen Lucas, CALAFCO Executive Officer
slucas@buttecounty.net
AND

Christine Crawford, CALAFCO Deputy Executive Officer
christine.crawford@yolocounty.org

Please contact Steve Lucas, CALAFCO Executive Officer, at slucas@buttecounty.net or (630) 538-7784 with
any questions.

Members of the 2021 CALAFCO Board of Directors Awards Committee

Board Members:

Anita Paque, Committee Chair (Calveras LAFCo, Central Region) apaque@calafco.org
Daron McDaniel (Merced LAFCo, Central Region) dmcdaniel@calaco.org
Jo MacKenzie (San Diego LAFCo, Southern Region) jmackenzie@calafco.org
Margie Mohler (Napa LAFCo, Coastal Region) mmohler@calafco.org
Josh Susman (Nevada LAFCo, Northern Region) jsusman@calafco.org

Regional Officer Members:

Christine Crawford, CALAFCO Deputy Executive Officer (Central Region) christine.crawford@yolocounty.org
Steve Lucas, CALAFCO Executive Officer (Northern Regjon) slucas@buttecounty.net
Martha Poyatos, CALAFCO Deputy Executive Officer (Coastal Regjon) mpoyatos@smcgov.org

Gary Thompson, CALAFCO Deputy Executive Officer (Southern Region) gthompson@Iafco.org

Included as attachments:

Achievement Awards Program Summary

2021 Achievement Award nomination form

Achievement Award categories, nomination and selection criteria
Listing of prior Achievement Award recipients



mailto:slucas@buttecounty.net
mailto:christine.crawford@yolocounty.org

Q

CALAFCO ACHIEVEMENT AWARDS
SUMMARY OF PROGRAM CHANGES
AS ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON APRIL 30, 2021

Purpose of the changes
There are several gpalsto updating he CAIAFCO Adevement Avards program.

First, nomination criteriadid not exist for any award. By adding specific nomination criteria to each
award, it will be easier for those considering submittalf a nomination to have clear standards that
must be met in order forany nomination to be considered. Further, the critem creates guidelines
for the author of anomination submittal.

Next, also nonrexistent were selection criteria. By creating selection criterifor each award, the
Awards Committee has clear guidelinegsy which toreview and consider each nomination within a
given award category. Each proposed selection criteriadgstomized to the nomination criterigor
that award category.This clear criterion also allowsominators to understand what will be consited
by the Awards Committee as the nominations for a given category are considered.

We believe loth of these goals crea¢ a more transparent ad comprehensive Achievementwards
program for our membership.

Additionally, he updated AwardsProgramdoes several other things. Firstit spotlights achievements
above and beyod what is expected in the normal coursef business. Secondjt streamlines the
current Award categories. Finally links specific achievements back to the missioand purpose of
LAFCothereby enhancing their value and meaning

On April 30, 2021, the Board of Directors unanimously approved the updategram.This approval

was preceded by months of comprehensive review and work by the Association’s Executive Director
and Regional Officers, followed by a unanimous approval and recommendation to the Board by
the Awards Committee

Difference of the prior program to the updated program
In addition to the differences roted above, here areother notable differences:

x Prior program ha eleven (11) total award categories whereas thgpdated program haseight
(8).

x EliminatedDistinguished Service Awaréalready awarding longevity in Lifetime Achievement
Award).

X Rolled Outstanding LAFCo Clerinto Outstanding LAFCo 1efessional and expanded to all
LAFCo personnel. With the new criteria, each LAFCo personnel role shall be tdeadgally.

x Changed Outstanding CALAFCO Membdp Outstanding CALAFCQ/olunteer, thereby
excluding “staff person” and expanding scope to all who volunteer for the Association, not
just Board or staff.

X Added nomination criteria to Outstanding CALAFCO Associate Member

x Combined the following four awards into one (with two distincategories):Most Effective
Commission, Project of the Year, Government Leadership Award and Mike Gotch Courage
and Innovation in Local Government Awardrhese are now theMike Gotch Excellence in
Public Service Award.



x Criteria for this new award was taken from albér eliminated awards and tied directly to
several aspects of the mission of LAFQbrough the creation of the two distinct award
subcategories

Adopted changes to the membership and voting of the Achievement Awards

Committee

There are two otherchanges directly affecting the Awards CommitteeOne relates to the
membership structure of the Awards Committee and the other is to the voting.

First, the four Regional Officers artill voting members of the Committee. These Officers enhance
the perspective of the Board Committee Members through their technical expertise and “on the
ground” experiences. By adding them as voting members (they were previodalyvisors” to the
Commiteee), the full voting membership isiine (9).

And finally,it is now a policy of the Committee thany voting member abstain from voting on any
category in which a nomination has been submitted by/for their LAFCo or a member (staff or
commissioner) of tkeir LAFCo. With bringing the voting membership to nine, this abstention should
not pose a problem in terms of not having a quorum of votes cast.






!% 2021 Achievement Award Nominations
Due by Friday, August 13, 2021 at 3:00 p.m.

EXECUTIVBUMMARY
In no more than250 words, summarize why this recipient is the most deserving of this
award.



{% 2021 Achievement Award Nominations
Due by Friday, August 13, 2021 at 3:00 p.m.

NOMINATIONSUMMARY
Pleaseindicate the reasonswhythis personor agencydeservesto be recognized(this section
must be no more than1,000 words or2 pagesmaximum).






Selection criteria:
1. Must meet all nomination criteria requirements for consideration.
2. Equal consideration shall be given to all nominees that meet the nominating criteria.
3. The level of volunteering time and resources to the Association shad#l a consideation with all
other nomination criteria.

Outstanding Commissioner

Award Summary:

Presented to an individual Commissioner for extraordinary service to his or her Commisdi@traordinary
service is considered actions above and beyond those required in the course of fulfilling their statutory
responsibilities as a Commissioner. It requas consistently demonstrating independent judgment on
behalf of the interest of the entire county, developing innovative and collaborative solutions to local issues,
and leading the commission and community by example.

Nomination criteria:

1. Nominee must e a Commissioner of a LAFCo in good standing with the Association.

2. Nominee shall be a Commissioner for thielll year in which the nomination is being made.

3. Proven demonstration of consistently exercising independent judgment for the greater good of the
Caunty is required.

4. Proven leadership of the commission and the community through collaborative, innovative and
creative solutions to local issues is required.

5. Proven effective results and outcomes shall be demonstrated in the nomination.

Selection critera:

1. Must meet all nomination criteria requirements for consideration.

2. Equal consideration shall be given to all nominees that meet the nominating criteria.

3. Representation type (citgountydistrict-public) shall not be a consideration nor shall be the siz
or geographic area of the LAFCo on which the Commissioner serves.

4. The overall impact of the leadership of the Commissioner shall be considered.

5. Preference may be given to individuals who have not previously received this award and meet all
the required criteria.

Outstanding LAFCo Professional

Award Summary:

Recognizes an Executive Officer, Staff Analyst, Clerk, Legalinsel or any other LAFCo staff person for
exemplary service during the past year. Exemplary service is considered actions which clearly go above
and beyond that which is asked, expected, or required in the charge of their LAFCo responsibilities.

Nomination criteria:

1. Nominee must be a staff person of a LAFCo in good standing with the Association.

2. Nominee shall be a staff person for the full year in which the nomination is being made.

3. As a staff person, the nominee can be either an employee of the LAFCa contractor providing
employeetypeservices to the LAFCo.

4. Efforts must be demonstrated that the individual has consistently gone above and beyond or
outside the scope of their role or job responsibilities, with proven results that otherwise would not
have occurred.

Selection criteria:

1. Must meet all nomination criteria requirements for consideration.

2. Equal consideration shall be given to all nominees that meet the nominating criteria.

3. Position within a LAFCo shall not be a consideration, nor shallthe size or geographic area of
the LAFCo.

4. The overall impact of the LAFCo professional to their LAFCo and the greater community shall be
considered.

5. Preference may be given to individuals who have not previously received this award and meet all
the required criteria.




Lifetime Achievement Award

Award Summary:

Recognizes any individual who has made extraordinary contributions to the statewide LAFCo community
in terms of longevity of service, exemplary advocacy of LAF€lated legislation, proven leadership in
approaching a particular issue or issues, and demonstrated support in developing and implementing
innovative and creative ways to support the goals of LAFCos throughout Califordifa minimum, the
individual should be involved in the LAFGmmmunity for at least twenty (20) years.

Nomination criteria:

1. Nomination must be received from a member LAFCo or Associate Member in good standing with
the Association.

2. A minimum of 20 years direct involvement with the LAFCo community is required torsideration.

3. During that time, nominee shall have a proven positive impact and effect on the support and
evolution of LAFCos statewide

4. Thisincludes advocacy of LAFCos statewide through legislation, developing creative and innovative
solutions to LAFCassues that serve beyond their LAFCo to the greater goaaid collaborative
stakeholder approaches to issues and opportunities to further the cause and mission of LAFCo.

Selection criteria:
1. Must meet all nomination criteria requirements for consideration
2. Preference may be given to nominees who also have proven experience volunteering for CALAFCO
through a regional officer role, serving on committees, serving on the CALAFCO Board, or any other
method of volunteering for the Association that serves to prmte and support the mission and
work of LAFCos throughout the state.

Legislator of the Year

Award Summary:

Presented to a member of the California State Senate or Assembly in recognition of leadership and valued
contributions in support of LAFCo goals that have a statewidd#fect. The recipient shall have
demonstrated clear support and effort to further the case and ability of LAFCos to fulfill their statutory
mission. Selected by CALAFCO Board by super majority.

Nomination criteria:
1. Nominee shall be a California State legislator during tHall year in which the nomination was
made.
2. Nominee must have demonstited extraordinary leadership in the Legislature on behalf of LAFCos
statewide, with efforts resulting in a positive impact for all LAFCos.

Selection criteria:
1. Must meet all nomination criteria requirements for consideration.
2. All Legislator of the Yearaminations shall be forwarded by the Achievement Awards Committee
to the Board for consideration.
3. Selection of the recipient of this award shall be done with a super majority approval of the Board
(present at the time of the vote).




Mike Gotch Excellence in Public Service Award

Awarded to an individual, group or agency for actions that rise above expected or common functions or actions
that are LAFCeaelated; and reduce or eliminate common institutional roadblocksand result in a truly
extraordinary public service outcomendividuals, a LAFCo, or collaborative effort among multiple LAFCos or a
LAFCo with other entities are eligible. Other entities shall be decisimaking bodies at the local, regional or state
level. This award has two distinct categories, each focusing on specific areas of the LAFCo mission.

Mike Gotch Excellence in Public Service Award categories:
1. Protection of agricultural and open space lads and prevention of sprawl
2. Innovation, collaboration, outreach and effective support of the evolution and viability of local
agencies, promotion of efficient and effective delivery of municipal services

Mike GotchExcellence in Public Service Award categories:

Protection of agricultural and open space lands and prevention of sprawl

Includes the development and implementation of programs or other actions associated with agriculture,
water, flood control, parks andecreation, habitat conservation plans and public lands. Demonstrates the
recipient has identified, encouraged and ensured the preservation of agricultural and open space lands.
Proven actions that encourage cities, counties and special districts to direct development away from all
types of agricultural lands, including prime agricultural lands and open space lands. Includes
demonstrated consideration given in decisions to Regional Transportation Plans, including sustainable
communities strategies and other growth plans to ensure reliable services, orderly growth, and sustainable
communities.

Innovation, collaboration, outreach and effective support of the evolution and viability of local agencies,
promotion of efficient and effective delivery ahunicipal services

Includes the development and implementation of innovate support and systems within internal LAFCo
operations in the support of local agencies. Actions produce systemic and sustainable improvements and
innovation of local government. Pran facilitation of constructive discussions with local and regional
agencies and proactive outreach to local and regional agencies as well as local stakeholders and
communities to identify issues and solutions and demonstrated action as a coordinating aggim offering
and supporting unique local solutions to meet local challenges. Successful demonstration of development
of capacities and abilities of local agenciefrovide tools and resources to local agencies to address aging
infrastructure, fiscal chalenges and the maintenance of existing services. Demonstrated action to
streamline the provision of local services with proven results that services are consistent or have been
improved as a result, with little to no increased cost to the consumer. Focuseffbrts and proven results

to ensure delivery of services to all communities, especially disadvantaged communities.

Nomination criteria:

1. Clear demonstration that the actions rise above expected or common functions or actions

2. The actions reduced or elinmated common institutional roadblocks

3. The actions clearly proven a truly extraordinary public service outcorttat is systemic and
sustainable

4. ldentified unique circumstances and factors leading to the solution/project

5. The innovative steps taken by the LAFCo or entéwtities/individual to solve the problem,
overcome the situation, or to take action

6. Clear description of the results/outcomes of the work and the sherand longterm effects

7. How this work can be promoted as a LAFCo best practice

8. Clear demonstration how this nomination meets all criteria.

Selection Criteria:
1. Must meet all nomination criteria requirements for consideration.
2. Equal consideration shall be given to each nominee within each categdriie size or geographic
area of the LAFCo within a given category shall not be a consideration
3. The overall impact of the actions and outcomes to the greater community being served shall be
considered.
4. The level of impact based on the required nomination criteria shall be considered.







GovernmentLeadershipAwand
Lifetime Achevement Award

2016

San Luis Obispo County Public Works Dept.
Kathy Rollings McDonaldSan Bernardino)

Distinguished Service Award
Most EffectiveCommission
Outstanding CALAFCO Member
Outstanding Commissioer

Outstanding LAFCo Professial

Outstanding LAFC&lerk
Projectof the Year
GovernmentLeadershipAwaxd
Lifetime Achevement Award

2015

Peter Brundage, Sacrament@. AFCo
San Luis Obispo LAFCo

John Leopold, Santa CruzAFCo
Don Tatzin, Contra CostaAFCo

Steve Lucas Butte LAVCo

Cheryl CarterBenjamin, OrangeLA=Co
Countywide Water Study,Narin LAFCo)
Southern Region of CALAFCO

Bob Braitman (retired Executive Officer)

Mike Gdch Courage& Innovation in
Local Government Leadeiship Award

Distinguished Service Award
Most EffectiveCommission
Outstanding CALAFCO Member
Outstanding Commissioer

Oustanding LAFCo Professial

Outstanding LAFC&lerk
Projectof the Year

GovernmentLeadershipAwaxd

CALAFC@®@ssociate Member of the Year
Legislators of the Year Award
Lifetime Achievement Award

2014

Yuba County Water Agency

Mary Jane GriegpYubalLAFCo

Butte LAFCo

Marjorie Blom, formerly of Stanislaus LAFCo
Matthew Beekman, formerly of Stanislaus LAFCo

Sam Martinez, San Bernardino LECo

Terri Tuck YoloLAFCo

Formation of the Ventura County Waterworks District No.
38 (Ventura LAFCo) and 2015 San Diego County Health
CareServices five-year sphere of influence and service
review report(San Diego LAFCo)

The Cities of Dublin, Pleasanton, Livermore and San
Ramon, the Dublin San Ramon Services District and the
Zone 7 Water Agency

Michael Colantuonoof Colantuono, Highsmith & Whatley
Assemblymember Chad Mayes

Jim Chapman(Lassen LAFCo) and Chris Took@ormerly of
Sacramento LAFCo)

Mike Gdch Courage& Innovation in
Local Government Leadeiship Award

Distinguished Service Award
Most EffectiveCommission
Outstanding CALAFCO Member
Outstanding Commissioer
Outstanding LAFCo Professial
Outstanding LAFC&lerk
Projectof the Year

David Church, San Luis ObispgoAFCo

Kate McKenna, Monterey AFCo
Santa Clara LAFCo

Stephen Lucas, ButteLAFCo
Paul Norsell,NevadaLAFCo
Kate McKenna,MontereyLAFCo
Paige Hensley YubalL A=Co

LAFCo Procedures Guide: 30Year Special Edition
San Diego LAFCo



GovernmentLeadershipAward

Legislators of the Year Award
Lifetime Achievement Award

2013

Orange County Water District, City of Anaheim, Irvine Ranch
Water District, and Yorba Linda Water District

Assembly member Katcho Achadjian
Susan Wilson, Orange LAFCo

Mike Gdch Courage& Innovation in
Local Government Leadeiship Award

Distinguished Service Award
Most EffectiveCommission
Outstanding CALAFCO Member
Outstanding Commissioer
Outstanding LAFCo Professial
LAFCo Outstanding LAFCdClerk
Projectof the Year

GovernmentLeadershipAward

Legislators of the Year Award
Lifetime Achevement Award

2012

Simon Salinas, Commissioner, Monterey LAFCo

Roseanne Chamberlain AmadorLAFCo

Stanislaus LAFCo

Harry Ehrlich, San DiegbA=Co

Jerry GladbachLos Angeles LAFCo

Lou Ann TexeiraContra Costa

Kate Sibley, Contra Costd.AFCo

Plan for Agricultural Preservation Stanislaus LAFCo

Orange County LAFCo Community Islands Taskforce,
Orange LARCo

Senators Bill Emmerson and Richard Roth

H. Peter Faye, YolbAFCoHenry PellissierLos Angeles
LAFCogCarl LeverenzButte LAFCoSusan VicklundWilson,
Santa Clara LAFCo.

Mike Gdch Courage& Innovation in
Local Government Leadeiship Award

Distinguished Service Award
Most EffectiveCommission
Outstanding CALAFCO Member

Outstanding Commissimer

LAFCo Outstading LAFCo Professital
Outstanding LAFC&lerk

Projectof the Year

GovernmentLeadershipAward
Lifetime Achevement Award

2011

Bill Chiat, CAAFCO Execute Director

Marty McClelland, Commissioner, Humboldt AFCo
Sonoma LAFCo

StephenA. Suza, Commissione, Ydo LAFCoand
CALACO Boardof Directors

Sherwood Daington, Monterey
CaroleCoope, Sonoma LA-Co
Gwenna MacDonal, LassenLARCo

CountywideService Review& SOlUpdate, Santa Clara
LAFCo

North OrangeCountyCoalition of dties, Orange LARCo
P. Scott Bravne, LegalCaunsel LAFCos

Mike Gdch Courage& Innovation in
Local Government Leadeiship Award

Distinguished Service Award
LAFCo Most Effectiv€ommission
Outstanding CALAFCO Member
Outstanding Commissioer
Outstanding LAFCo Professial
Outstending LAFC&lerk

Martin Tuttle, DeputyDirectorfor Planning, Caltrans
Mike McKeever, Executive Director,SACOG

CarlLeverenz Commissioner and ChaiButte

San BernardinoLAFCo

Keene Simonds Executive Officer,NapaLAFCo

Louis R. Calcagno, Monterey LAFCo

June SavalaDeputy ExecutiveOfficer,Los Angeles LRCo
Debbie Shubert, Ventura LAFCo



Projectof the Year

GovernmentLeadershipAward

2010

Cortese-Knox-Hertdberg Definitions Revision
Bob Braitman, ScottBrowne, dark Alsop,CaroleCooper,
and GeorgeSpiliotis

Contra CostaSanitary District

ElsinoreWater District and ElsinoreValley MunicipalWater
District

Mike Gdch Courage& Innovation in
Local Government Leadeiship Award

Distinguished Service Award

Most EffectiveCommission
Outstanding CALAFCO Member
Outstanding Commissioer
Outstanding LAFCo Professial

Outstanding LAFC&lerk

Projectof the Year

GovernmentLeadershipAward

Special Achieverent

2009

Helen Thompson Commissione, Ydo LAFCo

Kathleen RollingsMcDonald ExecutiveOfficer, San
Bernardno LAFCo
Bob Braitman, ExecutiveOfficer, Santa Barbara LAFCo

Tulare LAFCo

RogerAnderson,Ph.D., QLAFCO ChaiSanta Cruz LACo
George Lang, \entura LAFCo

Harry Hhrlich, Govenment Consultant, San DiegoLAFRCo

Candie Feming, Fresno LAFCo

Butte LAFCo
SewerCommission - Oroville Region Murtgipal Service
Review

Nipomo Cammunity Services District and the County of San
Luis Obispo

Chris Tooker Sacranento LAFCoand CAAFCO Boal of
Directors

Mike Gdch Courage& Innovation in
Local Government Leadeiship Award

Distinguished Service Award
Most EffectiveCommission
Outstanding CALAFCO Member

Outstanding Commissimer
Outstanding LAFCo Professial
Outstending LAFC&lerk
Projectof the Year
GovernmentLeadershipAward

Legislatorof the Year Award

2008

Paul Hood Executive Officer, San Luis @po LAFCo

William Zumwalt, Executive Officer, Kigs LAFCo
NapalLAFCo

Susan Vicklund Wilson, CALAFCOVice Chair
Jerry Gladlach, CALAFCOr&asurer

Larry M. Forture, Fresno LAFCo

Pat McCormick, Sata CruzLAFCo Execitte Officer
Emmanuel Abello, SantaClara LAFCo

Orarge LAFCoBoundaryReport

Cities of Amador City, Jadkson, lone, Plymouth & Sutter
Creek; Amador County;Amador Water Agency; Pine
Grove CSD -Cowntywide MSR Project

Assembly Member JimSilva

Distinguished Service Award

Most EffectiveCommission
Outstanding Commissioer
Outstending LAFCo Professial

Peter M. Detwiler, Senate Local Govenment Committee
ChiefConsultant

YubalAFCo
Dennis Hanslerger, San Bernardino LAFCo

Michael Ott, San Diego LAG ExecutiveOfficer
Martha Poyaos, San Mateo ExecutiveOfficer



Outstanding LAFC&lerk
Projectof the Year

GovernmentLeadershipAward
Legislatorof the Year Award

2007

Wilda Turner, Los Ageles LAFCo

Kings LAFCo
City andCommunity District MSR and SQIpdate

San BernardinoBoard of Sugervisors
Assembly Member Annawl. Caballero

Outstanding CALAFCO Member
Distinguished Service Award
Cownsel Most EffectiveCommission
Outstanding Commissioer

Outstending LAFCo Professial
Outstending LAFC&lerk
Projectof the Year

GovernmentLeadershipAward
Lifetime Achievement

2006

Kathy Lorg, Board Chair, Ventur&a AFCo
William D. Snith, San Diego Legal
Santa ClaraLAFCo

GayleUilkema, Contra CostaLARCo

Joyce Crothwaite, Orange LAFCo Executive Officer
Debby Chanberlin, San Bernardino LAFCo

San BernardinoLAFCoand City of Fontana
Islands Anexation Program

City of Fontana- Islands Anexation Progiam
John T:Jack” Knox

Outstanding CALAFCO Member

Distinguished Service Award
Most EffectiveCommission Award
Outstanding Commissioer Award

Outstanding LAFCo Professimal Award
Outstanding LAFC&lerk Award

Projectof the Year Award
OutstandingGovernmentLeadershipAward

Legislatorof the Year Award

2005

EverettMillais, CALAFCO Executi@fficerand Executive
Officerof Ventura LAFCo

Clark Alsop, CA L AFCQ.egd Caunsel
Alameda LAFCo

TedGrandsen, \Ventura LAFCo
Chris Tooker Sacranmento LAFCo

Larry Calemine, Los Angeles LAFCo Executi@dficer

JaniceBrysm, San Diego LAFCo
Marilyn Hemmer, Saciamento LARCo

Sacramento Municipal Utility Digtrict Sphere of Influence
Amendment and Annexation; Sacramento LAFCo

Cities of Porterville, Tulare,and Visaliaand Tulare LAFCo
Island Annexation Program

Senator Gristine Kehoe

Outstanding CALAFCO Member
Distinguished Service Award
Most EffectiveCommission Award
Outstanding Commissioer Award

Outstanding LAFCo Professial Award
Outstanding LAFC&lerk Award
Projectof the Year Award

OutstandingGovernmentLeadershipAward

2004

Peter Herong, CALAFC@Board, Orange BFCo
Elizabeth Cagro Kemper, Yob LAFRCo
Ventura LAFCo

Art Aseltine, Yuba LAFCo
Henri Pellissier, Los Ageles LAFCo

BrucBaracca San JoaquinLA=Co
Danielle Ball, Orange LAFCo

San Diggo LAFCo
MSR of Rie Protection and Emergency Medical Services

SacramentoArea Coundl of Governments (SACOG)

Outstanding CALAFCO Member
Distinguished Service Award
Most EffectiveCommission Award

Scott Harvey CALAFC®&xecutive Director
Julie Howard Shasta LAFCo
San Diggo LAFCo



Outstanding Commissioer Award
Outstanding LAFCo Professimal Award
Projectof the Year Award

2003

Edith Johnsen, Monterey LAFCo
David Kindig, Santa Cruz BFCo

San LuisObispo LAFCo
Nipomo CSDSOI Update MSR, andEIR

Outstanding CALAFCO Member
Distinguished Service Award

Most EffectiveCommission Award
Outstanding Commissioer Award
Outstanding LAFCo Professial Award
Outstanding LAFC&lerk Award
Projectof the Year Award

Special AchievemenfAward

2002

Michael P. Ryan, CALACOBoard Member
HenriF. Pellissier, Los Ageles LAFCo
San LuisObispo LAFCo

Bob Salaza, El Dorado LACo

Shirley Arderson, San Dieg LACo

Lori Fleck, Siskiyou LAFCo

NapaLAFCo
Comprehensive Water Service Study

JamesM. Roddy

Outstanding CALAFCO Member

Most EffectiveCommission Award
Commissimer Award

Outstanding LAFCo Professital Award
Outstanding LAFCdClerk Award

Projectof the Year Award
OutstandingGovernmentLeadershipAward

2001

Ken Lee, CAIAFCo Legislative Committe€hair
San Diggo LAFCoOutstanding

Ed Snively, Imperial LAFCo

Paul Hood San Luis Obispd.AFCo

Danielle Ball, Orange LARC0

San LuisObispo LAFCo

Napa LAFCoNapa CountyFarm Bureau, Napa Valey
Vintners Asscciation, NapaValley HousingAuthority, Napa
CountyAgricultural Commissianer’s Office, NapaCounty
Counsel Ofice, and Assembly Member Patricia Wiggins

Outstanding CALAFCO Member
Distinguished Service Award

Outstanding Commissioer Award
Outstanding LAFCo Professital Award
Projectof the Year Award
OutstandingGovernmentLeadershipAward

Legislatorof the Year Award

2000

SR JonesCAAFCO Execute Officer

David Martin, Tax AreaServices Sectin, State Board of
Equdization

H. Pder Faye, Yolo LAFCo
Ingrid Hansen, San Diego LAFCo
Santa Barbaa LAFCo

Alameda County Boardof Supervisors,Livermore City
Council,Pleasanton City Council

Senator JackO’Conrell

Outstanding CALAFCO Member
Distinguished Service Award

Most EffectiveCommission Award
Outstanding Commissioer
Outstanding LAFCo Professial Award
Outstanding LAFC&lerk Award
Projectof the Year Award

Legislatorof the Year Award

RonWootton, CALAFC®Board Chair

Ben Wlliams, Commissionon Local Gornance for the
21st Century

Yolo LAFCo

Rich Gordm, San Mateo LAFCo
Annamaria Perrella, Contra CostaLARCo
Susan Stehmann, El Doralo LA-Co

San Diggo LAFCo

Robert Hertzberg, Assembly Member



1999

Distinguished Service Award

Most EffectiveCommission Award
Outstanding Executive Officer Award
Outstanding LAFC&lerk Award

Most CreativeSolutionto a Multi-
JurisdictionalProblem

OutstandingGovernmentLeadershipAward
Legislatorof the Year Award

1998

Marilyn Ann FlemmerRodgers Sacranento LAFCo

Orarge LAFCo

Don Graff, Alamedd AFCo
Dory Adams,Marin LAFCo
San Diggo LAFCo

Assembly Member dhn Longville
Assembly Member RoberHertzberg

Outstanding CALAFCO Member
Distinguished Service Award

Most EffectiveCommission Award
Outstanding Executive Officer Award
Outstanding Staff Analysis

OutstandingGovernmentLeadershipAward

1997

Dana Smith, OrangeLARCo
Marvin Panter, Fresno LARCo

San Diggo LAFCo

George Sqiotis, RiversideLAFCo

JoeConvery, San Diego LAFM
Joyce Crothwaite, Orange LAFCo

Santa Clara County Plannindgepartment

Most Effective Commission Award
Outstanding Executive Officer Award
Outstanding Staff Analysis
OutstandingGovernmentLeadershipAward

Most CreativeSolutionto a Multi-
JurisdictionalProblem

Legislatorof the Year Award

Orarge LAFCo

George Fimey, TulareLAFCo

Annamaria Perrella, Contra CostaLAFCo
South Countylssues Discussion Group
Alameda LAFCo andContraCostaLAFCo

Assembly Member TomTalakson



SWWDFKPHQW
; $; ro ;
;6+10%(23,001; %14+.)9; ;

) -%+07 /.#8)+1% ,&*'0 '''06.5 6

2 %* "2 & 2#. %2 "2(*2
I # # # # 1 # #
; $" 2 -2 2 2 + 12/ 2
- 0,
# g#ZO ;02 # # # # # # # #
#12-,2 #2 ) %2 % *2/ * 2
# # # # #
#%2 # 2 2 %* "2
# # # # #
PNrijee o

&O0=Y LY YzZzg8pWy=-8jdg-
e

. 'n.::'ijj:.
'-8g0="jd ¢ e

(q4WHEK . kVeKhe o« o o1  O9he QRV>wW>Z>h ke
=24 ¥UYYaAS=+ $e y2<id\[Ujje=[F5=gi »
dAn-dij-+ dlUf¥=-j@rd[U T=e"n-dij*ej=gdinU8fe sLglee
$o " # | # #H # "I H # | HH

Ty o # #Hit # # g #H #
_y2< °

#

* o S-g@dMNin-Y=<<=@BIiGWY-6dlg<xBdB UG &8NUV.YFWHNU-7Y ="
y-jAd<Ui-<vl1lj-N=<e8d[[prUjd=0-¢dij-esj|

NS Eyedge= 8=t e{-jUd N be<e o+ o8dYY-79lHEIN-§xgdinU8]je
jd>zj=y<<gevBe. iDUSHa =8| UB AF=4 =7-]Ugl®=2irfBU="8="
79-8XWUjiSB 0= vERpd I N1=i2ic U8aUSXER =-liejBu="jyd |»
d"Qds<y-j=geS-v=-Yaipadrrg§ Epdip8jUd" -

dij-HeYU=va3irSdpeg=8dP Uge<iUrM=4<gBY =d= W-T¥ge
jde i sLgS=Vdpi<"-j£3=0iS UM S =8HJfUm2&pp 88 tilmgvUA"N e
‘e 1<dv=ge f=df¥Bc nbyeeijCdrn-dij-dprj| »

*= 6 d @ =t UgE MYFpd g feFS =  $e-y2<)61Xepegdte
8dANiU<=g-judA o

'U/\8:g:Y| °
dp‘\o):Z:Ug- °

z=8pjUv=e$EIB=Q-
drn-dij-« $e



%low«™ fETE
!‘ E&|"VESEYE '¢p EILZVtInE

INE<J44F-28 thos xAE %EKS8oe qu-}E

Lre, By iT-/SEf0E0ff253Y--21E

O®%r¢@t ¥iT-/0EToRoTf2E3-22TE

Y~~-,33 E Eijz - BoY%fi°%kz -+ PE

REOC, E E

Ser‘e EAfSRe™yAKOe™yuA$zzASTf- 2" #

JNF=M[NJIEZ;NUE EE,{®R B, Er- , %®ERUE r{E4E,- E
O», - r¢~'0yE00E»¢-, ®F
O»-3.1¢~00Bo)Z 0)EO{'r GE*v,®E
O»-3.1¢~0mE3'0C,®E
O» - rE~DBERBO ..., 33 ©CreE
G B {GE{, + ¢LE»vV{R % {(ECTFGEE -, % O EOA E

B,S'3er GOIGEDEr ® £» 3 -, E22® © Y, AFE ,Ex0rE80QEr®~ E

B' ..., ){¢E %, ¢0)Er®~E

INF>J*\NWE -F?]3EIE

Lre, EC"°% i ¥fAfe-sE

] KTTTTTTTTI Tm m m m E nE
O®%r£ CreY@Regdtish TshCWbjPE
)~~®,33 HHO+-TE 0 HES°*j f/BHE E
REOC,!E E

Serel®C"°%ij YfAfe-s$—stz" zzz"°jTA ©3




7 20%$4 @' ,8m

SPaY9maa@n *mMmVib@o9a@mMBMHQS&2@Y® m®%a @Y rmYH5amC YHm _m
L@9?@MBERid@PREPBDAH Y@@ WHaxEHM 9?7f9P a9PNNTRHaH @ _m

;Tdbme m "SYN@PmM m5 mH S @Bnm@ony DNec P (lVeO@@ MfH=@ m
VYSTHH@I a¥QmBecPaj@\HBD@anYm nwW@SVLE@ mMm @]JH=@ m
<ScQ?H'Mmm XcIXNEBb@ia@ PBHASTHD ELYjv0 P H@® 2 ¥0dag 8iéh_am
ScPgmH+HRATLcP@a@f@LSVN@Pa _HBD@@®si@h aU YYH@ 2 HL@m m
SPMIDlYBcP?g9a@@ M5 mVYSfH?@_m aS@PaYRdPajm
—e_aSN@P?mm 9P?m a3 aBcPajm_aSN@Y_ m

G:MMAR EA= R1BREYS c P ? g9 R ¥ P a@i= @ @@ =8P 2YHQKHPDm
g9a@¥NP ?9YPR HM&N @M QR i m@ @ PHNDY HP K HP@ ¥0P 29 Y= FBB m
aFAY@®®m m#YScP?g9a@SemH N Ha@@PaBEsEay BSe @ : S@S\VPI R ? m

Ha @Y @96 mmN ¢ 8 ma OH/R/iY SBF 9 BMBnacFn® i i@ V9 [N GSBama @ YH S Y m
eY@S8@=L9NIRMHBP it m

>>TOWMI " GOARB=®@ mMm 5 mF9 @nia @ PNPa® M §l VD@ @ Ynmm
_@\H=%8mMP @ —aHBEPOPP@i9aHH™® ™M m m MP?m mY@fHSc_m
OPP @ i9adP an@ PS BIBP@F B1Y 9 _aV ¥Sd el 8 @\ c P B &0@ @ny m
_j_a@SmR_SLH&SaN S BhwYYaonr- @@ i 9 adHPIPMmSNVL @P@ M m
V@QP?HPD m

5 mVYSTHRPIKRXE®LHBG @ Fm-em a SNIGPHNM®@ _VSQIHD @ a®@ S & mm
g9a@@MH=%FPm SLH BaWBQRLmam@j)Y ma QNP MP ?HfH?&E9IM=3PaHPc@ _m
aSATIOLCORRP@i9SMEQMPHIEBEBSMSPM_ m5 MFO<®@ @@ __Belm
H B rma 9 H Pa-ORIEME B ? td BBimH) HepPrP @ i9aHSP_ m













































	01 - 08-11-21 Notice and Agenda
	04 - June 9 2021 DRAFT Meeting Mintues
	06 - Byron Bethany Irrigation District Annexation
	21-02 - BBID Annexation - Lawrence Property - Staff Report
	21-02 - BBID Annexation - Lawrence Property Reso
	ANNEXATION TO BYRON BETHANY IRRIGATION DISTRICT
	LAWRENCE PROPERTY
	ANNEXATION TO BYRON BETHANY IRRIGATION DISTRICT – LAWRENCE PROPERTY

	LAF_2102 Lawrence - BBID DIGITAL

	07 - Beacon West & Willow Mobile Home Park - Sphere of Influence Expansions Contra Costa Water District & Diablo Water District
	Willow Mobile Home letter of support June 2021
	21-03 - Beacon West & Willow Mobile Home Park - CCWD and DWD SOI Amendments - Reso
	LAF_2103_BeaconWestWillow_CCWD_SOI DIGITAL
	LAF_2103_BeaconWestWillow_DWD_SOI DIGITAL

	08 - Parks & Recreation Services MSR SOI Updates
	PHRPD  MSR 2019 Ltr from Reliz Valley Residents
	PHRPD MSR SOI Reso
	PHRPD Exhibit A

	09 - Cemetery Districts MSR SOI Updates - 2nd Round
	ALCD MSR SOI Reso
	ALCD Boundary SOI Map 2021 - Exhibit A
	BBKUCD MSR SOI Reso
	BBKUCD Boundary SOI Map 2021 - Exhibit A

	10 - CALAFCO 2021 Annual Conference - Call for Board of Directors Candidates and Achievements Award Nomination

	Outstanding CALAFCO Volunteer: Off
	Outstanding CALAFCO Associate Member: Off
	Outstanding Commissioner: Off
	Outstanding LAFCo Professional: Off
	Gotch-Ag and open space and sprawl: Off
	Gotch - innvation muni services: Off
	Legislator of the Year must be approved by the full CALAFCO Board: Off
	Lifetime Achievement Award: Off
	Nominee name/agency: 
	Nominee agency name: 
	Nominee address: 
	Nominee phone: 
	Nominee email address: 
	Nominator name: 
	Nominator agency: 
	Nominator address: 
	Nominator Phone: 
	Nominator email address: 
	Executive Summary: 
	Nomination Summary: 


